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SAN PEDRO RIPARIAN NATIONAL CONSERYVA-
TION AREA AND THE RENG/LAS VEGAS
CATHOLIC DIOCESE LAND CONVEYANCE

THURSDAY, APRIL 30, 1987

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON PUBLIC LANDS,
NATIONAL PARKS AND FORESTS,
CoMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 am. in room
SD-366, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Chic Hecht, presid-

ing.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. CHIC HECHT, A U.S. SENATOR
FROM THE STATE OF NEVADA

Senator HecuT. Good morning, everyone. I want to convene the
Subcommittee on Public Lands, National Parks and Forests.

Bob, do you want to sit down there? You are going to be the first
witness. I understand you are going to be called two or three times
this morning, so you do not have to give us your full shot the first
time.

I have a statement I would like to read first for the record.

The purpose of the hearing today is to receive testimony on two
measures before the Public Lands, National Parks and Forests Sub-
committee. The measures are S. 252 and its companion bill, H.R.
568, which establish the San Pedro Riparian National Conservation
Area; and S. 575, a bill to convey public land to the Catholic Dio-
cese of Reno/Las Vegas, Nevada.

1 would like to welcome Sister Maurer today as a witness on
S. 575. Sister Maurer is pinch-hitting for some of her colleagues in
Nevada who are not able to come in person to testify on this very
worthwhile bill. I am sure she will do an excellent job, and we, in
turn, will try not to ask her too many difficult questions. We will
save those to be answered later in writing if necessary.

I am pleased that the Subcommittee is holding a hearing on this
bill today, because the bill sets right what would otherwise be an
unfortunate injustice to a very thoughtful woman who wanted to
do some good for young women in the western states who are in
need of help at difficult points in their lives. Both Marie Lawton
and the Catholic Church have acted in good faith in this connec-
tion, and I think the government should allow Marie Lawton’s will
to provide for the good work she intended.

¢))
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I therefore hope this Committee and Congress will take prompt
and favorable action on this bill. I believe that last year’s version
of this bill would have been enacted except for some last minute
confusion about a flood control right-of-way which has now been
easily resolved.

While I have never visited the proposed San Pedro Riparian Na-
tional Conservation Ares, I understand that it is not only beautiful
but also has a unique and diverse wildlife habitat and interesting
archeclogical, cultural and recreational resources. I hear that it is
so lovely that it has been called God’s apology for his creating the
scorching desolate desert.

I do not know who wrote this, but I think the desert is beautiful.
I have lived in Nevada for 40 years. [Laughter.]

Anyway, I do not disagree with my staff. They have good inten-
tions, but some of the Easterners, Bob, do not understand the West.
I think the desert is gorgeous.

Although the area is interesting and attractive, the establish-
ment of the Riparian Conservation Area has stirred some contro-
versy with resource users in the area. We are, therefore, particu-
larly pleased that the witnesses could be with us today to share
their diverse views on these matters.

At this point, I will place copies of these bills in the hearing
record.

[The texts of S. 252, H.R. 568, and S. 575 follow:]

100 CONGRESS
1ST SESSION S. 252

To establish the San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES
JANUARY 6, 1987

Mr. DeConcint (for himself and Mr. McCaIN) introduced the following bill;

which was read twice and referred to the Committee on Energy and Natural
Resources

A BILL

To establish the San Pedro Riparian National Conservation
Area.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-
2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,
3 SECTION 1. ESTABLISHMENT OF SAN PEDRC RIPARIAN NA-

4 TIONAL CONSERVATION AREA.

Ct

(a) ESTABLISHMENT.—In order to protect the riparian

6 area and the aquatic, wildlife, archeological, paleontological,

-1

scientific, cultural, educational, and recreational resources of

[0 2]

the public lands surrounding the San Pedro River in Cochise

NeJ

County, Arizona, there is hereby established the San Pedro
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Riparian National Conservation Area (hereafter in this Act
referred to as tﬁe “conservation area’’).
(b) AREA INCLUDED.—The conservation area shall con-
sist of public lands as generally depicted on a map entitled
“San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area—Pro-

Hhiawo:

y o :
posed” dated July 1986, comprising approximately 48,707

e

-acres.

(c) Map.—As soon as is practicable after enactment o'f
this Aet, a map and legal description of the conservation area
shall be filed by the Secretary of the Interior (hereafter in
this Act referreci to as the “Secretary’’) with the Committee
on Interior and Insular Affairs of the House of Representa-
tives and the Committee on Energy and Natural Resources
of the United States Senate. Each such map shall have the
same force and effect as if included in this Act. Such map
shall he on file and available for public inspection in the
Office of the Director of the Bureau of Land Management,
Department of the Interior, and in the Bureau of Land Man-
agement offices of the State Director for Arizona, and the
district office responsible for the management of the conser-
vation area.

SEC. 2. MANAGEMENT OF CONSERVATION AREA.

(a) GENERAL AUTHORITIES.—The Secretary shall

manage the conservation area in a manner that conserves,

protects, and enhances the riparian arca and the aquatic;

@ 252 1§
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wildlife, archeological, paleontological, scientific, cultural,
educational, and recreational resources of the conservation
are.. Such management shall be guided by this Act and,
where not inconsistent with this Act, by the provisions of the
Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (herein-
after in this Act referred to as “FLPMA").

(b) Uses.—The Secretary shall only allow such uses of
the conservation area as he finds will further the primary
purposes for which the conservation area is established.
Except where needed for administrative or emergency pur-
poses, the use of motorized vehicles in the conservation area
shall only be allowed on roads specifically designated for such
use as part of the management plan prepared pursuant to
section 3 of this Act. The Secretary shall have the power to
implement such reasonable limits to visitation and use of the
conservation area as he finds appropriate for the protection of
the resources of the conservation area, including requiring
permits for public use, or closing portions of the conservation
area to public use.

(c) LivesTocK.—In order to provide an opportunity for
the study, evaluation, and monitoring of riparian areas in the
absence of livestock grazing, the Secretary shall not, subject
to valid existing contractual rights, issue any permit for the

grazing of livestock on lands designated as part of the conser-

oS 252 IS
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vation area by this Act for a period of 15 years from the date
of enactment of this Act.

(d) WiTHDRAWALS.—Subject to valid existing rights,
all Federal lands within the conservation area are hereby
withdrawn from all forms of entry, appropriation, or disposal
under the public land laws; from location, entry, and patent
under the United States mining laws; and from disposition
under all laws pertaining to mineral and geothermal leasing
and all amendments thereto.

(e) ENFORCEMENT.—Any person who violates any pro-
vision of this Act or any regulation promulgated by the Sec-
retary to implement this Act shall be subject to a fine of up to
$10,000, or imprisonment for up to one year, or both.

SEC. 3. MANAGEMENT PLAN.

(2) DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN.—No later than 2 years
after the enactment of this Act, the Secretary shall develop a
comprehensive plan for the long-range management and pro-
tection of the conservation area. The plan shall be developed
with full opportunity for public participation and comment,
and shall contain provisions designed to assure protection of
the riparian ares and the aquatic, wildlife, archeological, pa-
leontologica!, scientific, cultural, educational, and recreation
resources and values of the conservation area.

(b) RECOMMENDATIONS.—The Secretary shall, in the

comprehensive plan refereed to in subseetion (), develop ree-

s

»
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ommendations to Congress on whether additional lands
should be included in the conservation area.

(c) COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS.—The Secretary may
enter into cooperative agreements with appropriate State and
local agencies, pursuant to section 307(b) of FLPMA, to
beuter implement the plan developed pursuant to sub-
section (a).

(d) REsEarcH.—In order to assist in the development
of appropriate management strategies for the conservation
area, the Secretary may authorize research on matters in-
cluding the environmental, biological, hydrological, and cul-
tural resources of the conservation area, pursuant to section
307(a) of FLPMA.

SEC. 4. ADVISORY COMMITTEE.

(2) EsTaBLisHMENT.—The Secretary shall establish a
San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area Advisory
Committee, whose purpose shall be to advise the Secretary
with respect to the preparation and implementation of the
comprehensive, long-range plan required pursuant to section
3 of this Act.

(b) REPRESENTATION.—There shall be 7 members of
the Committee, who shall be appointed by the Secretary.
Members of the Committee shall be appointed for terms of
three years, except that of the members first appointed 2

shall be appointed for terms of ‘&'@x'm.ml 3 shall be appoint-

@5 252 1§
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ed for terms of 2 years. The Secretary shall appoint one
member from nominations supplied by the Governor of the
State of Arizona, and one member from nominations supplied
by the Supervisors of Cochise County, Arizona. The other
members shall be persons with recognized backgrounds in
wildlife conservation, riparian ecology, archeology, paleontol-
ogy, or other disciplines directly related to the primary pur-
poses for which the conservation area was created.

SEC. 5. LAND ACQUISITION.

The Secretary may acquire lands or interests in lands
within the boundaries of the conservation area by exchange,
purchase, or donation, except that any lands or interests
therein owned by the State or local government may be ac-
quired by donation or exchange only. Any purchase or ex-
change of lands to be added to the conservation area shall
require the consent of the owner of those lands or rights.
SEC. 6. REPORT TO CONGRESS.

No later than five years after the enactment of this Act,
and every ten years thereafter, the Secretary shall report to
the Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs of the House
of Representatives and the Committee on Energy and Natu-
ral Resources of the United States Senate, on the implemen-
tation of this Act. Such report shall include a detailed state-

ment on the condition of the resources within the conserva-

V]

oy Ot

.

i

tion area and of the progress of the Bureau of Land Manage-
ment in achieving the purposes of this Act.
SEC. 7. AUTHQRIZATION,

There are hereby authorized to be appropriated such
sums as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this
Act.

O
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100TH CONGRESS
18T SESSION o N 68

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

MaxncH 25 (egislative day, MARCH 24), 1987

Received; read twice and referred to the Committee on Energy and Natural

To

OB S > TR N - R

Resources

AN ACT

establish the San Pedro Riparian National Conservation
Area in Cochise County, Arizona, in order to assure the
protection of the riparian, wildlife, archeological, paleonto-
logical, scientific, cultural, educational, and recreational re-
sources of the conmservation area, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-
tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,
SECTION 1. ESTABLISHMENT OF CONSERVATION AREA.

(a) ESTABLISHMENT.—In order to protect the riparian
ares and the aquatic, wildlife, archeological, paleontological,
scientific, cultural, educational, and recreational resources of

the public lands surrounding the San Pedro River in Cochise

MV
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County, Arizona, there is hereby established the San Pedro
Riparian National Conservation Area (hereafter in this Act
referred to as the “conservation area’).

(b) ArEA INcLUDED.—The conservation area shall con-
sist of public lands as generally depicted on a map entitled
“San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Are{a—-Pro-
posed”’, numbered AZ-040-01, and dated August 22, 1986
and consisting of approximately forty-eight thousand seven
hundred and seven acres.

(c) Map.—As soon as is practicable after enactment of
this Act, a map and legal description of the conservation area
shall be filed by the Secretary of the Interior (hereafter in
this Act referred to as the “Secretary”’) with the Committee
on Interior and Insular Affairs of the House of Representa-
tives and the Committee on Energy and Natural Resources
of the United States Senate. Each such map shall have the
same force and effect as if included in this Act. Such map
shall be on file and available for public inspection in the
Office of the Director of the Bureau of Land Management,
Department of the Interior, and in the Bureau of Land Man-
agement offices of the State director for Arizona, and the
district office responsible for the management of the conser-

vation area.

HR 568 RFS .
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SEC. 2. MANAGEMENT OF THE CONSERVATION AREA.

(a) GENERAL Avtnorrties.—The Secretary shall
manage the conservation area in 8 manner that conserves,
protects, and enhances the riparian area and the aquatic,
wildlife, archeological, paleontological, scientific, cultural,

educational, and recreational resources of the conservation

.area. Such management shall be guided by this Act and,

where not inconsistent with this Act, by the provisions of the
Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (herein-
after in this Act referred to as “FLPMA™).

(b) Uses.—The Secretary shall only allow such uses of
the conservation area as he finds will further the primary
purposes for which the conservation area is established.
Except where needed for administrative or emergency pur-
poses, the use of motorized vehicles in the conservation area
shall only be allowed on roads specifically designated for such
use as part of the management plan prepared pursuant to
section 3 of this Act. The Secretary shall have the power to
implement such reasonable limits to visitation and use of the
conservation area as he finds appropriate for the protection of
the resources for the conservation area, including requiring
permits for public use, or closing portions of the conservation
area to public use.

(¢) Livestock.—In order to provide an opportunity for
the study, evaluation, and monitoring of the San Pedro Ri-
parian National Conservation Area in the absence of live-

HR 568 RFS
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stock grazing, the Secretary shall not, subject to valid exist-
ing contractual rights, issue any permit for the grazing of
livestock on lands designated as part of the conservation area
or a period of fifteen years from the date of
enactment of this Act.

(d) WiTHDRAWALS.—Subject to valid existing rights,
all Federal lands within the conservation area are hereby
withdrawn from all forms of entry, appropriation, or disposal
under the public land laws; from location, entry, and patent
under the United States mining laws; and from disposition
under all laws pertaining to mineral and geothermal leasing
and all amendments thereto.

(¢) ENFORCEMENT.—Any person who violates any pro-
visions of this Act or any regulation promulgated by the Sec-
retary to implement this Act shall be subject to a fine of up to
$10,000 or imprisonment for up to one year, or both.

SEC. 3. MANAGEMENT PLAN.

(2) DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN.—No later than two years
after the enactment of this Act, the Secretary shall develop a
comprehensive plan for the long-range management and pro-
tection of the conservation area. The plan shall be developed
with full opportunity for public participation and comment,
and shall contain provisions designed to assure protection of

the riparian area and the aquatic, wildlife, archeological, pa-

HR 568 RFS
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leontological, scientific, cultural, educational, and recreation
resources and values of the conservation area.

(b) ReEcoMMENDATIONS.—The Secretary shall, in the
comprehensive pian referred to in subsection (a), develop rec-
ommendations to Congress on whether additional lands
should be included in the conservation area.

(¢) COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS.—The Secretary may
enter into cooperative agreements with appropriate State and
local agencies, pursuant to section 307(b) of FLPMA to
better implement the plan developed pursuant to subsec-
tion (a).

(d) RESEARCH.—In order to assist in the development
of appropriate management strategies for the conservation
area, the Secretary may authorize research on matters in-
cluding the environmental, biological, hydrological, and cul-
tural resources of the conservation area, pursuant to section
307(a) of FLPMA.

SEC. 4. ADVISORY COMMITTEE.

(a) EstaBLISHMENT.—The Secretary shall establish a
San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area Advisory
Committee, whose purpose shall be to advise the Secretary
with respect to the preparation and implementation of the
comprehensive, loﬁg-range plan required pursuant to section

3 of this Act.

HR 368 RFS
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(b) REPRESENTATION.—There shall be seven members
of the committee, who shall be appointed by the Secretary.
Members of the commitiee shall be appointed for terms of

hree

vaasl O

~4

ears, except that of the members first appointed two
shall be appointed for terms of one year and three shall be
appointed for terms of two years. The Secretary shall appoint
one member from nominations supplied by the Governor of |
the State of Arizona, and one member from nominations sup-
plied by the supervisors of Cochise County, Arizona. The
other members shall be persons with recognized backgrounds
in wildlife conservation, riparian ecology, archeology, paleon-
tology, or other disciplines directly related to the primary
purposes for which the conservation area was created.

SEC. 5. LAND ACQUISITION.

The Secretary may acquire lands or interests in lands
within the boundaries of the conservation area by exchange,
purchase or donation, except that any lands or interest there-
in owned by the State or local government may be acquired
by donation or exchange only. Any purchase or exchange of
lands to be added to the conservation area shall require the
consent of the owner of those lands or rights.

SEC. 6. REPORT TO CONGRESS.

No later than five years after the enactment of this Act,

and every ten years thereafter, the Secretary shall report to

the Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs of the House

HR 568 RFS
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of Representatives and the Committee on Energy and Natu-
ral Resources of the United States Senate, on the implemen-
tation of this Act. Such report shall include a detailed state-
ment on the condition of the resources within the conserva-
tion area and of the progress of the Bureau of Land Manage-
ment in achieving the purpeses of this Act.

SEC. 7. AUTHORIZATION.

There are hereby authorized to be appropriated such
sums as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this
Act.

Passed the House of Representatives March 24, 19817.

Attest: DONNALD K. ANDERSON,
Clerk.

HR 568 RFS
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100TH CONGRESS
18T SESSION . 575

To convey pubiic iand to the Catholic Diocese of Rene/Les Vegas, Nevada.
(-]

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

FEBRUARY 19, 1987

Mr. HEcHT introduced the following bill; which was read twice and referred to
the Committee on Energy and Natural Resources

A BILL

To convey public land to the Catholic Diocese of Reno/Las
Vegas, Nevada.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-
tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,
Sgorion 1. Finpines Anp Purpose.—(a) The Con-

gress finds that—

1

2

3

4

5 (1) in 1949 Marie D. Dawson purchased from
6 Clark County in a tax sale 40 acres of land in Clark
7 County, Nevada;

8 (2) she paid taxes on this property until her death
9 in 1975, at which time the property was bequeathed to
10 the Roman Catholic Diocese of Reno/Las Vegas to be

11 used to benefit the Home of the Good Sheperd, which

USSPRNCA00160
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2
works with troubled young women in the Western
States;
(3) since 1975 the Diocese has paid iaxes on th
property; and
(4) it has recently been discovered that Clark
County erred in selling the property in 1949 since the

iand at that time was actuelly in the public domain.

(b) The purpose of this Act is to convey this property to
the Diocese of Reno/Las Vegas so it may be sold to benefit -

the Home of the Good Sheperd.

Sec. 2. CONVEYANCE.—Notwithstanding any other
provision of law, the Secretary of the Interior shall convey to
the Catholic Diocese of Reno/Las Vegas, Nevada, the lands
described as follows: one 40-acre parcel comprising the
northwest one-quarter of southwest one-quarter of section 13
township 19 south range 61 east Mount Diablo base line and
Meridian, subject to the limitation of section 3 of this Act.

SEc. 3. RESERVATION OF RigHT-OF-WAY.—A right-
of-way and construction easement shall be reserved to the
United States to accommodate flood control facilities of the
Clark County Regional Flood Control District. Said right-of-
way shall be no more than 75 feet in width and 1,320 feet in
length, and shall be located in accordance with the Clark
County Flood Control District Master Plan.

O
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Senator HecHT. The hearing record will remain open for two
weeks to receive additional comments and material.

Well, with that thoughtful introduction we are quite honored
today to have Mr. Robert F. Burford, the Director of the Bureau of
Land Management, Department of the Interior.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT F. BURFORD, DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF
LAND MANAGEMENT, DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, ON
S. 252/H.R. 568

Mr. Burrorp. | have a complete statement which I would request
be entered in the record.

Senator Hecut. Thank you, without objection.

Mr. Burrorp. I would like to read a condensed statement.

I would also like you to note that seated behind me is my State
Director for the State of Arizona who is very familiar with the area
and can answer any technical questions should they arise and
should I not have the answers to them myself. He will be able to
lend local flavor to the testimony.

I do appreciate the opportunity to appear in front of the Subcom-
mittee to discuss the Department’s views on S. 252 and H.R. 568.
While we appreciate the endorsement from Congress for manage-
ment by the Bureau of Land Management of the San Pedro Ripari-
an National Conservation Area, we did in our testimony before the
House Subcommittee on National Parks and Public Lands state
that we would support the legislation only if it is amended to
better reflect the principles of multiple-use management which are
engrained in the Bureau of Land Management’s philosophy.

S. 252 and H.R. 568 would establish the San Pedro Riparian Na-
tional Conservation Area in Cochise County, Arizona, consisting of
approximately 48,707 acres of public lands depicted on a referenced
map. The area covered by the two bills is about 30 miles long and 2
to 3 miles wide. It currently includes approximately 43,371 acres of
land which the Bureau acquired by deed dated March 6, 1986, in a
land exchange with an oil company.

The area is managed by the Bureau of Land Management for its
many resource values under the broad mission given to the Bureau
by the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976, which
states that we shall manage lands under principles of multiple use.

Under these principles, appropriate attention is given to riparian
values, wildlife habitat, soil, vegetation, watershed, historical and
cultural resources and recreational activities.

This area has a very diverse wildlife population. Approximately
260 species of birds are thought to frequent the area, including
about 20 raptor species. The most notable of these raptors is the
grey hawk. Big game species include mule and white-tail deer and
javelina. There are no known threatened or endangered species in
the area.

The San Pedro area affords many opportunities for a variety of
developed and diverse recreation activities. There are 122 known
archeological sites within the area and numerous known sites adja-
cent to the area. There is a strong possibility that there are very
many more of these sites which have not been discovered. The sites
represent all stages of human occupation of the southwest over an
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11,000 year period. These provide a unique opportunity for inter-
preta*ion.

There also are 9 known vertebrate fossil sites, at least 2 of which
are highly significant sites. There are numerous additional sites ad-
jacent to this area. These paleontological sites provide an excellent
opportunity for scientific research and development.

Currently grazing is permitted in the area under a lease which
was in effect when the Bureau acquired the land in exchange. That
lease expires at the end of this calendar year. Presently the man-
agement in Arizona does not intend to renew the lease, has no
irétent of allowing grazing there until the land-use plan is complet-
ed.

Proper management of the area, recognizing all the resource
values found there, necessitates these changes in the bills.

We do not favor the language in section 2(c) of the bills that
would disallow new grazing permits for a period of 15 years. Prepa-
ration of the management plan would provide the opportunity for
complete and thorough consideration of the impacts of livestock
grazing. It is our belief that our professional managers on the
ground with the guidance of the San Pedro Advisory Council can
best make determinations for the wise management of this area in
this responsibility.

We agree that the area should be closed to mining, as section 2(d)
provides; however, we suggest that the section be amended to pro-
vide that the Secretary of the Interior may lease the lands under
the Mineral Lands Leasing Act and the Geothermal Steam Act and
also that he may dispose of mineral materials under the Materials
Sales Act of 1947. These activities can be appropriately controlled
through the land-use planning process.

Both bills would limit the use of motorized vehicles to roads spe-
cifically designated for such use as part of the management plan.
We believe that this provision is too restrictive and that the use
should be allowed on roads in areas designated as part of the plan.
If as part of the planning process it is determined that areas as
well as roads should be open, the bill would be too restrictive in
this manner.

We believe that the most effective way to manage an area such
as the San Pedro area is through the land-use planning process,
which provides for a thorough examination and evaluation of an

area, its resources, capabilities and potential and extensive public
involvement of all the interested public. This is preferable to a leg-
islative moratorium on specific activities that might, with proper
management, be permitted in an area in a multiple-use context.

For instance, in Arizona, BLM manages man riparian areas. In
some, such as the San Simone Watershed, mechanical means with
dams and drop structures were utilized to recover the watershed
and restore the riparian values. In others, such as Burro Creek, in-
tensive livestock grazing allotment management plans were imple-
mented and have resulted in excellent recovery for the riparian
zone. In still others we have limited livestock grazing by providing
water outside the narrow canyon.

Each riparian zone has been addressed individual}iy, utilizing the
professional expertise which exists in the agency an full participa-
tion by State agencies and the public. So, too, we believe that the
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uses either permitted or denied in the San Pedro tract c:
should be addressed through these procedures.

However, these management decisions should be arrive
'through the planning process with full participation by the exp s
in BLM, _techmcal committees, the public and the advisory commit-
tees. While the planning is taking place, the area is closed to public
use, and permits are required for any activity whatsoever.

We find the reporting provision in 5. 252 and H.R. 568 to be bur-
(}ensome and unnecessary and suggest that section 6 be deleted
from the bills. Information concerning the area is always available
to the Congress without the necessity for a formal statutory report-
ing requirement.

We are proceeding under State water appropriation laws for nec-
essary water to carry out the provisions of S. 252 and H.R. 568. We
believe the State appropriation process is a proper way for the Fed-
eral Government to secure necessary water rights and recommend
that the bills be amended to reflect this requirement.

I find it regrettable that the House failed to address these con-
cerns during their deliberations on the bill earlier this year. I en-
courage your thoughtful consideration of our requests to these pro-
visions, and in closing I reiterate our support for S. 252 and H.R.
568 only if amended as suggested herein.

I will be pleased to respond to any questions from the Commit-
tee. As I stated previously, if there are questions that I cannot
answer, 1 yvﬂl ask Mr. Bibles to take them, or if the questions are
of a technical nature, we will reply for the record.

Thank you, Senator.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Burford on S. 252/H.R. 568
follows:]
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STATEMENT OF ROBERT F. BURFORD, DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT,
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON PUBLIC LANDS, NATIONAL
PARKS AND PORESTS, COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES, UNITED STATES
SENATE, ON 5. 252, &4 BILL »ro E3TABLISH THE SAN PEDRO RIPARIAN NATIONAL

252,

CONSERVATION AREA™ AND H.R. 568, A BILL “TO ESTABLISH THE SAN PEDRO RIPARIAN
NATIONAL CONSERVATION AREA IN COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, IN ORDER TO ASSURE THE
PROTECTION OF THE RIPARIAN, WILDLIFE, ARCHAEOLOGICAL, PALEONTOLOGICAL,
SCIENTIFIC, CULTURAL, EDUCATIONAL, AND RECREATIONAL RESOURCES OF THE
CONSERVATION AREA, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES."

I appreciate the opportunity to appear here today to discuss the Department of

Interior's views on S. 252 and H.R. 568.

We appreciate the endorsement for management by the Bureau of Land Management
of the San Pedro Riparian Conservation Area exteanded by the bill's spomsors.
However, as stated in our testimony before the House Subcommittee on National
Parks and Public Lands, we can support this legislation only if it is amended
to better reflect the principles of multiple use management. I will discuss

our concerns and objections to certain provisions later in my statement.

S. 252 and H.R. 568 would establish the San Pedro Riparian Couservation Area
in Cochise County, Arizona, consisting of approximately 48,707 acres of public

lands depicted on a referenced map.

Section 2 would require the Secretary of the Interior to manage the
conservation area in a manner that conserves, protects, and enhances the
riparian ares and the aquatic, wildlife, archaeological; paleontological,
scientific, cultural, educational, and recreational resources of the
conservation area. Management would be guided by the provisions of S. 252 and
H.R. 568 and, where not inconsistent with the bills, by the provisions of the

Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (FLPMA).

The Secretary could allow only such uses of the conservation area as he finds
will further the primary purposes for which the area is established.

Motorized vehicles would only be aliowed on roads specifically designated for
such use in the management plan required by section 3 of the bills, except for
administrative and emergency purposes., Further, the Secretary could limit
visitation to, and use of, the conservation area to protect its resources,

require permits for public use, or close portions of the area to public use.

section 2(c) of the bills would prohibit the Secretary, subject to valid
existing contractual rights, from issuing any permit for livestock grazing on
lande in the conservation area for 15 years from the date of enactment of

s. 252 and H.R. 568, Section 2(d) would, subject to valid existing rights,
withdraw all Federal lands within the conservation area from all forms of
entry, appropriation, or disposal under the public land laws; from location,
entry, and patent under the U.S. mining laws, and from disposition under all

laws pertaining to mineral and geothermal leasing.

Any person who violates any provisions of S. 252 and H.R. 568 or any
implementing regulations would be subject to a fine of up to $10,000 or

imprisonment for up to 1 year, or both.

section 3 would require the Secretary to develop a comprehensive plan for the
long-range management and protection of the conservation area, within 2 years

after enactment of this Act. The bills would require that the plan be
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developed with full oppoztunlty gor public particlpution and comment, and that
i+ contain provisions to assure p:otoctlon of the diverse values of the
congservation area. In addition, the Secretary would be required, in the
management plan, to develop cecommendatione to congress as to whether

additional lands should be included in the conservation area.

TO better implement the management plan, section 1 would authorize the

gecr tary to enter into cooperative agreements with appropriate state and
1ocal agencies, pursuant to section 307(b) of PLPMA. Also the secretary could
authorize research on environmental, biological, hydzologicul, and cultuzal
resources of the conservation area, pursuant to gsection 307(a) of PLPMA, in
order to assist in the development of appropriate management strategies for

the conservation area.

section 4 would require the gecretary to establish a san pedro Riparian
National Conservation Area Advisory Committee to advise him on the preparation
and implementation of the management plan required by the bills. The advisory
committee would be composed of seven members appointed by the Secretary for
3-year terms, except that for the first members appointed, two would be
appointed for l-year terws, and three, for 2-year terms. The Secretary would
be required to appoint one member from nominations supplied by the Governor of
arizona, and one member from nominations supplied by the supervisors of
Cochise County, Arizona, The other members would be required to be persons
with recognized backgrounds in disciplines directly related to the primary

purposes for which the conservation area was created.

gection 5 would authorize the gecretary to acquire lands or interests in lands
within the conservation area by exchange, purchase or donation, The
jandowner's consent would be required £o7 any purchase or exchange. Lands
owned by the state or local government could be acquired only by donation or

exchange.

secticon € would require the secretary to report to congress 5 years after
enactment of 5. 252 and H.R. 568 and every 10 years thereafter on the
{mplementation of the Act and to include in the report a detailed statement on
the condition of the resources within the conservation area and of the
progress of the Bureau of rand Management in achieving the purposes of the
Act., The bills would authorize app:opziations of such sums as may be

necessary to carry out the provisions of the bills.

The area covered by this:Act is about 30 miles long and 2 to 3 miles wide., It
cut:entiy contains approximately 43,371 acres of 1and acquired by the Bureaw

of Land Management by deed dated March 6, 1986.

The San Pedro Area now includes 43,371 acres managed by the pureau of Land .
Management for their many resource values under the broad mission given to the
Bureau by the pederal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 to manage lands
under principles of multiple use. Under these principles, appropriate
attention is given to riparian values, wildlife habitat, soil, vegetation,

watershed, historical, and cultural resources and recreational activities.
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The area has a diverse wildlife population, Approximately 260 species of
biids are thought te frequent the area, including about 20 raptor species,

The most notable of these is the Gray Hawk. Big game species include mule and
white~tailed deer and javelina. There are no known threatened or endangered

species in the area.

The San Pedro area affords many opportunities for a variety of developed and
diverse recreation activi;ies. There are 122 known archeclogical sites within
the area and numercus known sites adjacent to the area. There is & strong
possibility that there are many more., The sites represent all stages of human
occupation of the Southwest over an 11,000-year period. These provide a

unique opportunity for interpretation.

There also are nine known vertebrate fossil sites, at least two of which are
nighly significant sites. There arce numerous additional sites adjacent to the
area. These paleontological sites provide an excellent opportunity for

scientific research and development.
Currently grazing is permitted in the area.

As I said, the san Pedro area has many outstanding and varied resource

values. Under S. 252 and H.R. 568 the Bureau of Land Management would have
the responsibility of managing and protecting the area in a manner that will
enhance public appreciation of the significant resources along the San Pedro

River,

Proper management of the area, recognizing all the resource values found

there, necessitates these changes in the bills:

We do

< nck fav th

aver the language in secticon 2{c) cof the billg that
would disallow new grazing permits for a period of 15 years, The
preparation of the management plan will provide the opportunity for
consideration of the impacts of livestock
grazing. It is our belief that our professional managers on the

ground with the guidence of the San Pedro Advisory Council can best

make determinations for the wise management of this area,

We agree that the a 1 should be closed to mining, as section 2(d)
provides. However we suggest that the section be amended to
provide that the Secretary of the Interior may lease the lands
under the Mineral Lands Leasing Act and the Geothermal Steam Act,
and also that he may dispose of mineral materials under the
Materials Act of 1947. These activities can be appropriately

controlled through the land use planning process.

The bills would limit the use of motorized vehicles to roads
specifically designated for such use as part of the management
plan, We believe that this provision is too restrictive and that
the use should be allowed on roads and areas designated as part of

the plan. 1If, as part of the planning process, it is determined
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that areas as vell as roads should be open, the bill would be too the plaoning is taking place the area is closed to publi
c
restrictive. permits are required.
We believe that the most effective way to manage an area such as o We find the reporting provision in S. 252 and H.R 568 to b
_," oK. o be
the San Pedro area is through the land use planning process which burdensome 2nd unnecessary, and suggest that section 6 be deleted
A cEL LASL ¢ e delete !
provides for a thorough examination and evaluation of an area, its from the bill, Information concerni ‘ '
ng the area is always available ’
rescurces, capabilities and potential and extensive public to the Congress without the necessity.for a formal st
> . statutory
involvement. This is preferable to & legislative moratorium on reporting reguirement.

specific activities that might, with propef management, be

permitted in an area in a multiple use context. For instance, in o We are proceeding under State water EPPYOPtiatiou laws for

Arizona BLM manages many ciparian areas. In some, such as the San necessgary water to carry Jut the provisions of S. 252 and

gimon watershed, mechanical means with dams and drop structures H.R. 568. We believe the State appropriation process is the proper
vere utilized to recover the watershed and restore the riparian way for the Federal Government to secure necessary water rights,
values; in others, such as Burro Creek, {ntensive livestock grazing and recommend that the bills be amended t; reflect this requiremén:.

allotment management plans were implemented and have resulted in

excellent recovery of the riparian zone. In still others, we have I find it regrettable that the House failed to address these ;Oncerns during
limited livestock grazing by providing water outside the narrow their deliberations on the bill earlier this year. I encourage your

canyons. Each riparian zone has bfan addressed individually thousbfful consideration of these provisions, and in closing, I reiterate our
utilizing the professional expertise of our agency, and full’ support for S. 252 and H.R. 568 only if it 1s amended as suggested herein.

participation by State agencies and the public, So, too, we

I

believe that the uses either permitted or denied im the San pedro I will be pleased to respond to questions.

tract can and should be addressed through these procedures.
However these management decisions should be arrived at through the
planning process with full participation by the experts in BLM,

technical committees, the public and advisory committees. While

74-526 0 - 87 -~ 3
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Senator Hecur. Thank you very much. I would like to request
that you stick around for a few minutes. Our distinguished Chair-
man will be here within the next 10 or 15 minutes, and he might
have some questions.

Mr. Burrorp. I will be happy to do that.

Senator HECHT. In the meantime, we will proceed.

Sister Marie Bernarde Maurer.

Just one moment, Sister.

Do you have some testimony on the Diocese?

Mr. BurrForb. Yes, on the Nevada bill?

Senator HECHT. Yes.

Mr. Burrorbp. S. 5757

Senator HecHT. Yes.

Mr. Burrorp. Yes, I have a statement on that. )

Senator HecHT. Would you go over that, and then we will have
the Sister come up. Anything she might want to say; I have no
question for her.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT F. BURFORD, DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF
LAND MANAGEMENT, DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, ON 8. 575

Mr. Burrorp. I would, as usual, request the complete text of my
statement be included in the record, and I will read at least part of
it to the Committee assembled here. ] )

Senator Hecar. Thank you. Your complete text will be in the
record, and I appreciate t{le fact that you are not going to read
your complete text. )

Mr. Burrorp. Once again, I appreciate the opportunity to appear
here today to discuss the Department of the Interior’s views on Oo.
575, a bill which would convey public lands to the Catholic Diocese
of Reno/Las Vegas, Nevada. o

Section 1(a) of S. 575 states that the Catholic Diocese of Reno/Las

. Vegas was bequeathed the lands in 1975 by Marie D. Dawson of
Clark County who had purchased the lands in a tax sale in the
county in 1949. )

Jection 1 further states that it has recently been discovered that
Clark County erred in selling the lands since the lands were actual-
ly public lands. ) _

é’ection 1(b) would convey the property to the Diocese so that it
may be sold to benefit the Home of the Good Shepard which works
with troubled young women. )

Section 2 would require the Secretary of the Interior to convey a
certain described 40-acre parcel of land to the Catholic 'oncese of
Reno/Las Vegas which is subject to the limitation of section 3.

Section 3 would require that there be reserved a right-of-way ;md
construction easement that could be no more than 75 feet in width
and 1,320 feet in length to the United States to accommodate flood
control facilities of the Clark County Regional Flood Control Dis-
trict.

We do not support enactment of S. 575 because it does not pro-
vide for payment of fair market value, and we are required to re-
ceive fair market value under the terms of F_LPM_A; nor does the
bill provide for reimbursement of the administrative costs to the
United States if the conveyance were to take place.
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Any transfer such as this should protect any valid existing right.
S. 575 does-not provide for this protection.

Previously, upon discovery that these lands were public lands,
the Diocese filed an application for the lands under the Color of
Title Act. That application was denied by the Bureau because the
claimant did not meet the requirements of the law. The two re-
quirements which were not met were that no valuable improve-
ments had been placed on the lands nor had there been cultivation
of the lands as required by the Color of Title Act.

There are two existing laws under which the Catholic Diocese of
Reno/Las Vegas could obtain the lands. It could acquire them
under the Recreation and Public Purposes Act which allows for the
conveyance at less than fair market value of public lands to any
nonprofit corporation or association for recreational or public pur-
poses where certain circumstances are met. However, any convey-
ance under that act would contain a provision for reversion of the
land back to the United States if the lands are not used for public
purposes.

The Catholic Diocese could also obtain the lands described in S.
575 through purchase under section 203 of the Federal Land Policy
and Management Act. That law requires that the sale of public
land shall be made at a price not less than fair market value. How-
ever, a section 203 sale may be prohibited at the present time by
the United States District Court Order issued on February 10, 1986,
in the case of National Wildlife Federation v. Burford.

That order enjoins the Bureau of Land Management from modi-
fying, terminating or revoking in full or in part under the Federal
Land Policy and Management Act any withdrawal of classification
that was in effect on January 1, 1981. A classification for recrea-
tion and public purposes was in effect on January 1, 1981, on this
particular parcel.

On December 30, 1986, we received a right-of-way application
from Clark County for flood control purposes. The area applied for
consists of 800 acres and includes the 40 acres covered by S. 575.
Detailed plans have not been submitted, and we do not know what
impact the proposed project would have on the described 40 acres.

In light of this application, it might be feasible for the Diocese to
consider obtaining another parcel under the R&PP Act if it has a
need for lands for a public purpose. We will be pleased to work
with the Diocese if it chooses that alternative.

This concludes my statement. I would be pleased to answer any
questions the Committee members might have. As I stated earlier,
my local district office would be glad to work with the Catholic Dio-
cese in obtaining lands for recreation and public purposes under
that particular act. : :

[The prepared statement of Mr. Burford on S.575 follows:]
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STATEMENT OF ROBERT F. BURFORD, DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT,
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON PUBLIC LANDS, NATIONAL
PARKS AND FORESTS, COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES, UNITED STATES
SENATE, ON S. 575, A BILL "TO CONVEY PUBLIC LANDS TC THE CATHOLIC DIOCESE OF
RENO/LAS VEGAS, NEVADA."

I appreciate the opportunity to appear here today to discuss the Department of
the Ianterior's views on S. 575, & bil) which would convey public lands to the

Cathelic Diocese of Reno/Las Vegas, Nevada.

Section.l(a) of S. 575 states that the Catholic Diocese of Reno/Las Vegas was
bequeathed the jands in 1975 by Marie D. Dawson from Clark County who had
purchased the 1ande in a tax sale from the County in 1949. Section 1 further
states that it has recently been discovered that Clark .County erred in selling

the lands since they were actually public lands.

Section 1(b) would convey the property to the Diocese 80 that it may be sold

to benefit the Home of the Good Shepard which works with troubled young women.

Section 2 would require the Secretary of the Interior to couvey a certain
_described 40-acre parcel of 1and to the Catholic Diocese of Reno/Las Vegas

which is subject to the limitation of section 3.

Section 3 would require that there be reserved a right-of-way and construction
easement that could be no more than 75 feet in width and 1,320 feet in length
to the United States to accommodate £lood-control facilities of the Clark

Cou-ty Regional Flood Control District.
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We do not support enactment of S. §75 because it does not provide for payment
of fair market value, nor does the bill provide for reimbursement of the
adwinistrative costs to the United States if the conveyance were to take
place. Furthermore, sny transfer such as this should protect any valid

existing rights. §. 575 does not provide for this protection.

Previously, upoan discovery that these lands were pu?lic lands, the Diocese
filed an application for the laads under the Color of Titie Act. That
application was denied by the Bureau of Land Hana;ement because the claimant
did not meet the requi:emeﬁts of the law. No valuable improvements had been

placed oun the lands, nor had there beean cultivation of the lands as required

by the Color of Title Act.

There are two existing laws under which the Catholic Diocese of Reno/Las Vegas
could obtain the landa. It could acquire them under the Recreation and Public
Purposes Act which allows for the conveyance at less tham fair market value of
public lands to any nonprofit corporation or association for recreational or
public purposes, if certain circumstances are met. However, any conveyance
under that Act would contain a provision for reversion of the land back to the

United States if the lands are not used for public purposes.

The Catholic Diocese could alsc obtain the lands described im S. 575 through
purchase under section 203 of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act.
That law requires that sales of public lands shall be made at a price not less

than fair market value, However, a gection 203 sale may be prohibited at this
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time by the United States District Court order issued on February 10, 1986, in

the case of National wildlife Federation V. Burford. That order enjolns the

Bureau of Land Management from modifying, terminating or revoking, in full or
in part, under the Federal Land Pelicy snd Management Act, any withdrawal or

classification that was in effect of January 1, 1981. A classification for

Recreation and Public Purposes was {a effect ou Japuary 1, 1981 ou this parcel.

On December 30, 1986, we received a right-of-way appliication from Clark County
for flood control purposes. The area applied for consists of 800 acres and °
includes the 40 acres covered by 8. 575. Detailed plans have not been
submitted and we do not know what impact the proposed project would have on
those 40 acres. In 1ight of this application, it might be feasible for the
Diocese to consider obtaining another parcel under the Recreation and Public
Purposes Act if it has & need for lands for s public purpose. We will be

pleased to work with the Diocese if it should choose that alternative.

This councludes my statement. I will be pleased to answer any questions you

may have.
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Senator HEcaT. Would you give us just off the top of your head
an estimate of the administrative costs? :

Mr. Burrorp. 1 am going to call on Mr. Bibles. He has been
doing a lot of this work just recently, and he can probably give you
a better estimate than I can.

Dean. .

Senator Hecut. We will not hold you to any figure, you under-
stand. Twenty-five dollars? :

Mr. BisLes. Not knowing that particular tract, you have a little
more insight as you get inside of a city. 1 would imagine some-
where in the neighborhood of $2,000 to $3,000 in administrative
costs.

Mr. BurForD. My guess was going to be $2,000. S

Senator Hecur. What are you doing with all that high-priced
personnei?

Mr. BurForp. For one thing, we check out the title.

Senator Hecar. We will kind of work it down a little bit.

We have Senator DeConcini here, and he has a problem with
time, as we all do. So Bob, could I ask you to sit here and wait for
our distinguished Chairman, and we wiil get back with you?

Let.us accommodate Senator DeConcini.

STATEMENT OF HON. DENNIS DeCONCIN], A U.S. SENATOR FROM
THE STATE OF ARIZONA

Senator DEConciNL. Thank you very much for permitting me the
time here. | know Senator McCain is going to be here at 10:30, and
Congressman Kyl and Congressman Kolbe is also here.

Mr. Chairman, I am here regarding S. 252, the San Pedro legisla-
tion. I appreciate your taking the time, Mr. Chairman, and the
State of Utah in listening to this particular legislation. This is a
very important piece of legislation to us, and I will briefly summa-
rize a lengthy, detailed statement that if I can leave to be put in
the record. '

Senator HecHT. Your statement will be a part of the record.

Senator DeEConcini. Mr. Chairman, on March 6, 1986 Dean
Bibles, the Arizona State Director of the Bureau of Land Manage-
ment, pulled off what I consider to be a very tremendous coup. On
that day last year, he acquired a very valuable and significant
piece of land in southern Arizona for the Bureau of Land Manage-
ment. That is known as the San Pedro Riparian Area.

The land, which takes in_about 48,000 acres of land along a 31
mile stretch of the San Pedro River in southeastern Cochise
County of Arizona, had been the subject of national and local inter-
est for many, many years. It is known for its extensive resource
value. It contains endangered and threatened wildlife species, sig-
nificant archeological and cultural resources, and it is one of the
few remaining riparian areas in the southwestern United States
which is in remarkably good condition at this time.

Over the years, there have been many attempts to acquire the
land, but because of the appraised value which was in the range of
$20 million, all attempts to purchase the property had proven fruit-
less. Through the foresight and leadership of the BLM and in par-
ticular Dean Bibles, the Federal acquisition of this land became a
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37
reality, and the good gentlemen to my right here have been the )
sole supporters of this. I want the record to show that we appreci-
ate their efforts tremendouSIY' Statement by Senator Dennis DeConcini
Mr. Chairman, the San Pedro is a unique and truly magnificent Hearing Before Energy and Natural Resources Committee
area. It deserves special management status, and this is the reason §. 252, San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area

the Arizona Congressional delegation authorized legislation to set
it aside as a nationai conservation area. San Pedrc is not like most
other BLM lands. The use restrictions contained in the legislation
recognize the diverse and delicate nature of the San Pedro re-

Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee, I want to extend my

sources. ' ;

A hearlng was held on this legxslat}on the 99th Congress, but;the personal thanks to you and the staff for your timely scheduling of this
bill was never reported by the Committee because of concern raised
by certain members about livestock grazn\g and Federal Reserve hearing on S. 252, a bill to establish the San Pedro Riparian Area as a

water rights. I wish I could come before you, Mr. Chairman, today

. Nati 1C ti A . This bill i 1 t id icai t tl biil I
and state that we have worked out the solution to these concerns. ational Conservation Area y s almost identical to the BAiL *

We h'gave not because we continue.to believe that 'the prOViSionS in sponsored last year with Sen. Goldwater and the one which passed the
the bill pending before the Committee today provide the best long-
term protection of this important resource area. House this year with the support of the entire Arizona Congressional

We intend to continue, Mr. Chairman, to work with anyone who

.o s . Y " B . Delegation. I am pleased to be here this morning to speak in support of
is interested in finding a solution, and we are not married to this

particular language. We are concerned about some of the strong s. 252, along with my distinguished colleague and cosponsor, Semator
suggestions that we move in a direction that would destroy what MeCain
we are intending to accomplish with this bill. :

My colleague, Senator McCain, and I are here to ask for your

support of the legislation without controversial amendments and
major changes. In the comprehensive statement I have submitted The San Pedro Riparian area consists of about 48,000 acres of
for the record, I address in detail the reasons for certain use re-
strictions and other matters that have been raised.
~~ 'This is a good bill, Mr. Chairman. It has the bipartisan support
/' of the entire Arizona delegation. Congressman Mo Udall, Chairman
> of the House Interior Committee, has made it a priority of his com-
- mittee. Congressman Kolbe, who has been a sponsor of this legisla-
| tion, has worked hard. All members of the delegation have been
'l committed to this as I have and Senator Goldwater was when he

recently acquired Bureau of Land Management land along a 31-mile stretch
of the San Pedro River in southeastern Cochise County, Arizona. The

land is well-known for its extensive resource values. Not only is it

D
o

home to hundr:ds of bird and wildlife species, but it contains some of

o et

the most significant cultural, archaeological and paleontological

\ wﬁhg:géﬁg lggéﬂiieﬁ:;%iheﬁfxﬁééﬁggd Bl.?onfgf:y for theJ resources found in the Southwestern United States. The
San Pedro, this legislation must be passed When we have the op- Presidio-fortress of the Santa Cruz de Terrenate, which was built and
portunity to set aside unusual resource units like this riparian area
and designated management authority WhiCh will assure the best abandoned during the era of the American Revolution, is located within
p0551b1e p,rOteCtlon’ we really ogght to do so. The acqumltﬁlon ,and the San Pedro Riparian Area. The Presidio was built as part of a chain
conservation of the San Pedro riparian area may go down in histo-
ry as one of the wisest Federal actions taken in this decade, and 1 of a dozen or so fortresses that were to protect the area of Northern

urge you, Mr. Chairman, to act very rapidly on this bill if you can.
I appreciate again, Mr. Chairman, your time for hearing this and
the consideration that I know the Committee will give to it.
[The prepared statement of Senator DeConcini follows:]

Mexico and the Southwestern United States from hostile Indians and
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be prohibited for a period of 15 years. The Secretary of the Interior

foreign military powers. The Presidio of Santa Cruz de Terrenate

is charged with developing a long-term management plan for the San Pedro
represents & high-water mark of the Spanish expansion into Southern

within 2 years of the date of enactment of the legislation. To help the
Arizona. The defeat of the Spanish empire at this site helped to insure

secretary develop a plan which responds to local and national concerns,
that Arizona would remain uncontested throughout the next one hundred

an Advisory Committee will be appointed.
years. Work is presently underway to stabilize the historic Presidio.

The adobe brick walls of the Presidio are deteriorating due to weather
Mr. Chairman. since acquiring these lands, the Bureau of Land
conditions. An interpretive program is presently being designed to
’ Management has done a superb job in evaluating the sensitive resources

explain the historical significance of this site to the public when the

of the San Pedro. In consultation with state, private and local groups,
final management plan for the area is completed.

the BLM is in the process of developing an interim management plan for

the area. The area has been closed to the public while it attempts to
On March 7, 1986, title to the San Pedro lands was transferred to
formulate this interim management plan. In order to allow the agency to
the Buresu of Land Management through a land exchange initiative with
develop and implement a a plan for the long term management of this
the private owner, Tenneco, Inc. Since that time, the BLM has closed
area, passage of this legislation is critical.
the area to the public while it formulates an interim land management

plan for these valuable public lands. 5. 252, and the House companion

This is a good bill, Mr. Chairman. It provides strong protections
measure, H.R. 568, will place the San Pedro BLM lands under the

for the sensitive and abundant resources found in the area. There are
Congressionally designated status of a National Conservation Area. .

few BLM areas in the United States that possess the diversity of
Under the provisions of the legislation, the lands will be managed to

resources present in the San Pedro. This area merits special attention
protect the fragile ecosystem of the San Pedro while allowing public use ’

by the BLM. Some critics of the legislation have charged that this area
for recreation and other activities on a controlled basis. While the

will become a single-use unit if it is off-limits to mineral entry and
Bureau of Land Management possesses authority to manage these lands

the grazing of livestock. I would like to respond to these charges, Mr.
under the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976, because of the

Chairman. The resources of the San Pedro ares are vast and impressive.
diversity of resources and the need to ensure the proper protection of

. The lands comprise some of the most significant riparian, wildlife,
the resources, special use provisions have been included in the
. archaeclogical, paleontologicai, scientific, cultural, aquatic, and

legislation. The lands will be withdrawn from mineral exploration and

recreational resources in the Southwest. These are the primary purposes
development, motorized vehicles will only be permitted on those roads

for which the land will be managed under the legislation. These are
specifically designated for such use, and the grazing of livestock will
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multiple uses, Mr. Chairman. Just because traditional BLM consumptive
uses will not be allowed does not mean the area is single-use.
Recreation, interpretation of cultural and archaeological resources for
a riparian area are pretty significant activities. These are varied and
multlple uses. Dean Bibles, the Arizona State Director of the BLM
deserves encrmous credit for having the foresight to acquire and keep
this land under BLM status, and I would hope that others in the BLM and
the Department of the Interior recognize its enormous values and the

need for special status.

Mr. Chairman, I want to spend a few minutes discussing the
livestock issue. A provision has been included in the bill which places
a temporary l5-year moratorium on livestock grazing in the San Pedro
Area. The provision was included in the bill because the Arizona
Congressional Delegation felt that, given the fact that there are few
riparian areas in the Southwest which have not been substantially
grazed, it was important to use this opportunity in the San Pedro to
evaluate what happens to a riparian area in the abs;ﬂce of grazing. The
only livestock grazing that presently exists in the San Pedro is through
a land/lease arrangement from the former owner. This lease will expire
in December.»1987. and the individual who now grazes cattle on these
lands knows his use of these lands will cease at that time. The land
has never been under BLM lease for grazing of livestock because it was
only recently acquired by the BLM and no Federal permits have been
issued. All uses of the resources will be severely restricted for at

least the next two to three years. This very fragile desert riparian
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area is one of the last untouched areas in the Southwest. We are not
attempting to establish a precedent on grazing of livestock in riparian
areas with the inclusion of the 15-year limitation provision. We are._?
simply attempting to allow the agency the time to conduct necessary
research and make evaluations on the resources of the San Pedro within
that time frame. Because of the diversity of the resources, the agency
must be very careful with t
While earlier objections were raised by the cattlegrowers, with the
slight modifications made to Section 2(c) of H.R. 568, as approved by
the House, the Arizona Cattlegrowers would support the legislation.
That change, which I would recommend to the Committee, is the deletion
of the words "riparian areas" in Section 2(c) on line 21 of the bill,
and the insertion of the words, "the San Pedro National Conservation
Area ", The Committee is urged also to include language in its report
which specifically states that it is not the intent of asuthors of the
bill to set a precedent on livestock grazing in other riparian areas.
There is a letter which has been sent to me and the Committee, Mr.
Chairman, from the Arizona Cattleman's Associatién. which I ask be
included in the record, which indicates their support for the bill with

the above referenced changes.

With reference to the ongoing controversy over Federal reserve
water rights, Mr. Chairman, all I can say is that 1 do not perceive a
problem for the State of Arizona in terms of any potential Federal
reserve wa.er right necessary to provide a minimum degree of protection

for the resources of the San Pedro. The river is 140 miles in length.Of
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this total, 31 miles is a perennial stream which has year round flows.

The remaining reaches of the river have intermittent flows with seasonal

-

appearance and disappearance. The portion of the river located within ;

o v

the San Pedro Riparian Area is perennial. )

Flow amounts in the San Pedro River and its tributaries are varible
and they fluctuate radically from season to season and year to year.
The San Pedro contains a large amount of sediment and therefore, the
suitability of the water for broad purposes is limited. Most of the
water in the San Pedro watershed is under ground. Hydrologic studies
are presently underway by the University of Arizona, the Arizona
Department of Water Resources and the Bureau of Land Management to
determine the relationship between groundwater and surface waters from
the San Pedro. Those studies will probably not be completed for two to
three years. From this standpoint, Mr. Chairman, it is difficult at
pest to quantify the amount of water necessary to maintain a minimum
flow to protect the resources of the San Pedro. It is also equally
‘difficult to quantify an amount of groundwater necessary to accommodate
future population growth in Cochise County. As 2 result, all Arizonaﬂ?
parties find it in the best interest of this area not to include ) {

.
specific language in the bill which speaks to the issue of Federal —)

reserve water rights.

With regard to the impact from any water right that may accrue to
the riparian area, it should be mentioned that there are several state

water rights on the river which have early priority dates, and in

-7~

addition very large claims for Federal reserve water rights downstream
on the Gila River. The Gila River Indians, for example, are claiming
rights far in excess of the supply in the river system. These rights,
if confirmed, have a priority date before 1900 and will be the dominant
rights to affect future uses in the entire San Pedro River. An
adjudication of all water rights in the Gila River system is currently
underway in the Arizona Superior Court. The adjudication is expected to
also address the relatioaship between the groundwater and surface water
supplies in the area. An evidentiary hearing on this issue is scheduled
for this coming October. T, therefore, believe, Mr. Chairman, that the
rights associated with this riparian area will not have any impact on

upstream development.

Mr. Chairman, I do not purport to be an expert on Federal reserve
water rights. All I can say to the Committee is that we, in Arizona, do
not believe the silence on this igsue will have an adverse impact on
future needs in the San Pedro water basin and would urge the Committee
to pass favorably on the bill without adding con&toversisl language. I
have a letter from my colleague, Jon Kyl, in the House, which I ask be

S —- .
made part of the record, Mr. Chairman, which outlines the specific water
jssues within the San Pedro. Representative Kyl has a long history of
experience in Federal reserve water rights. He indicates in his letter

that he sees no need for specific language in the San Pedro legislation.
Mr. Chairman, and other members of the Committee, this San Pedro

legislation is very important to those of us in Arizona. It is our top

priority in terms of public lands issues. Passage of the bill will
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Senator Hecurt. Thank you very much, Senator.
Congressman Kolbe, did you have a statement?
Mr. Korsk. I do. I will be happy to defer to the other sponsor of
the Senate Bill.
Senator HEcHT. Senator McCain, happy to have you.

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN McCAIN, A U.S. SENATOR FROM THE

-8-

allow the BLM to develop a “"showcase® of the San Pedro's vast

resources. I hope the Committee will take a close, hard iook at the STATE OF ARIZONA

legisletion and favorably report a bill to the full Senate in the near Senator McCaiN. Thank you very much for your indulgence’ Mr.
Chairman. 1 will be extremely brief because I think Senator

future. : DeConcini has pretty well described this piece of legislation. I also

share his admiration for Congressman Kolbe, who really has
played a key role in this issue.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Also, I am glad to see Mr. Burford here today, who has been very
helpful in attempting to help us arrive at a resolution of a couple
of areas of controversy that I hope and believe we can get worked
out so we could receive the full support of the administration on
this very important bill.

Again, I would like to thank Senator DeConcini and Congress-
man Kolbe and the rest of the Arizona delegation for their unani-
mous commitment to this bill.

Mr. Chairman, just briefly, there are two subjects of controversy,
water and grazing. | am not an expert on reserve water rights.
However, the information that I have reviewed with the help of
Congressman Kyl who is a member of our delegation who has had
many years experience on the issue of water rights leads me to be-
lieve that we have no problem as far as this measure is concerned.

The rights downstream from the area currently under litigation
in our State courts are such that no upstream rights could be filed
and accepted; that is, any subsequent upstream rights would be
junior to the downstream rights, and the downstream rights ex-
haust the water found in the Gila River Basin of which the San
Pedro is part.

Mr. Chairman, Congressman Kyl has arrived, and he would, I
am sure, be able to elaborate on that.

€A1 Swa T A0 VO Claliallo Vil

The other issue is the temporary suspension of grazing called for
by the legislation. I had conversations as recently as yesterday
with Mr. Griles and Mr. Burford in hopes that we can arrive at
some agreement on the grazing issue which is a matter of concern
to other Members of the Committee besides yourself and other
Western Senators.

I would just like to point out, Mr. Chairman, the only way we
are going to return this area to its pristine state that it was before
the area was overgrazed by cattlemen in the early part of our cen-
tury is to have some kind of moratorium or control over grazing in
that area. That is an important factor in this bill. I understand the
controversy surrounding it, but I still believe that it would be terri-
bly damaging if we allowed that one aspect of this bill to impede
what is one of the most important pieces of legislation which af-
fects our state.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, we are in a dramatically growing state.
So are you, Mr. Chairman. You share with us in_ Arizona and
Nevada enormous challenges that result from dynamic growth. We
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have to act now to preserve the great natural beauties of both our
states. We cannot wgut 5_, 1Q, 15, 20 years because the dr?mllatlc cvavement by the Honorable John rocatn
growth we are experiencing 18 literally overtaking many of these Before the Energy and Natural Resources
areas. That is why 1 urge that the Congress act this year and very Subcommittee on Public Lands
soon on this piece of legislation The San Pedro Riparlan Natlional Conservatlon Area
3 : ) : April 30, 1987
Thank you for your indulgence, Mr. Chairman. p » 19
[The prepared statement of Senator McCain follows:]

e ™ T

M». Chalirman:

I would like to thank you and the Subcommittee for schedulling
this hearing and for the opportunity to testify on behalf of
g.252, a measure to create the San Pedro Riparlan Natlonal
Conservation Area. This measure 1s very siinilar to one which my
predecessor, senator Goldwater, and the dlstingulished sponsor of
this measure, Senator peConcinl, had before your committee last

yeat.

The San Pedro Ripatrian Natlonal Conservation Area would be a
welcome and important ad¢ltlon to the lands already set astde In
Arizona, and our country, for the purpose of preserving our
natural herltage. Senator DeConcinl has already déscrlbed the
area at some length so I will not take the Committee's time to
replicate that informatlion. Instead, I will touch on several
aspects of this area which are unique and deserving of the

speclal treatment this legislatlon would provide.

The San Pedro River, which runs through this aree, 18 2
uniquely long stretch of desert riparlan habltat. While by no
means pristlne, this area 18 in good condition. Unfortunately,

the same forvces whilch make riparlian areas rich wildlife habltats,
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also attract development by man, These are the water and .over

‘\\m¢/)

in scarce supply in the West but abundantly present in areas llike
the San Pedro. In many of these areas, the need for development
resulted in thelr degradation. In San Pedro, we have an area

that dld not experlence thls phenomenon. As a result, It is

e

visited by an outstanding diversity of wildlife, including man

rare raptors such as the gray hawk, Harrls hawk, and the black

N

hawk.

_n additlon, as has been mentlioned, this area 's the site of
the Presldio of Santa Cruz de Terrenate., Thls Amerlcan
Revolution-era fortress has what I belleve 1s a feature found
only there, This !s the fact that you can stand at the edge of
the ruins and view practlcally the same scene the Spanlards must
have had. W!th a couple of very minor exceptions, no development

can be seen from lts grounds.

Lastly, the area Includes some very rare archeologlcal and
paleontological sites. This 1lncludes archeological remnants of
man's use of the area over 11,000 years, from Palec Indlans to
the Wells Fargo Stage Route. Among the paleontologlcal sites are
those containing fosslls of extlinct mammoths, camels, hlson and

horse, and deer.

Let me also comment on two subjects In this legislation of
some controversy, water and grazing. I do not pretend to be an
experc on reserved water vrights, however, the Informatlon I have
reviewed leads me To conclude we have no problem as fa:r as thls
measure is concerned., The rights downstream from the area,
currently under litigation in ou:r state courts, are such that no
upstream rights could be filed and accepted. That ls, any
subsequent upstvream rights would be junlor to the downst:eam

ehe

rights and the downstream rights exhaust the water found ln the

Gila River basin, of which the San Pedro 1s part.

Regarding the temporary suspenslon of grazlng called for by
the leglslation, I have referred above to the current condlitlon
of this riparian nabltat, Thls factor has lead the Congresslonal
delegatlon to conclude that we want the BLM to take advantage of
the sclentlfic value of this area by studying the effects of this
condition, thereby adding to the body of knowledge on riparlan
areas. 1 do not believe this moratorlium establishes a precedent
for BLM areas because of lts deslgnatlon as a conservatlon area,

a deslgnatlon unigue among our publlic lands.

Mr. Chalrman, let me close by statlng that the multiple uses
of this area; the recreatlonal, wildlife, educatlonal, and
sclenclflc potencial, are unique to the state and the natlon.
This area deserves speclal designation as quickly as posslible.
It 1s my hope that you would act on this legislation as rapidly

as posslble,
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Senator Hecur. Thank you, Senator.
Congressman Kyl, do you have a statement?

STATEMENT OF HON. JON KYL, A U.S. REPRESENTATIVE FROM
THE STATE OF ARIZONA

Mr. KyL. Yes, Mr. Chairman. 1 have a statement which perhaps
could be included as a part of the record.

Senator HecHT. Thank you. It will be included.

Mr. Kvi. Thank you. I think I would like to proceed to address
the question of reserved water rights. I, too, am strongly in support
of this. bill, and when I first considered co-sponsoring it with Con-
gressman Kolbe I inquired about the matter of reserved water
rights because that had been a matter of concern to me during the
time that I practiced law in Arizona.

I was informed that the issue would probably not be treated in
the House bill specifically with language. As a result, I inquired
into two matters: first, to determine whether if there were a re-
served water right there would be any users in the area who would
be damaged as a result of that.

I inquired into the matter by contacting several different entities
and communities, and the results of my investigation are included
in a letter which I sent to Congressman Kolbe which is dated
March 4. The bottom line of that investigation was that if there
were a right created regardless of how it is created, there would
likely not be any injury to any existing or known users in the area;
therefore, there should be no impediment to proceeding with the
development of the conservation area along with whatever area
may be required. :

The second inquiry is a bit more theoretical but it is important
to me as a water lawyer. That was the question of how the Con-
gress specifically dealt with the issue of water rights. I have always

folt that it should be the Congress, the legislative branch, which
- gpecifies what it intends to create when it creates some kind of a
Federal reservation and not leave that issue up to the courts be-
cause 1 happen to believe that the Congress has a better ability to
determine what the test for determining how much that water
right should be and the circumnstances of it and so forth than do
the courts.

As a result, I preferred to see in any legislation which creates a

Federal reservation of one kind or another a specific treatment of

the water rights issue. However, it is unnecessary in this case, and
I believe that not dealing with it in this case will not establish a
precedent.

The reason it is unnecessary is fortuitous. We have in Arizona
pending an extensive water rights adjudication, ongoing right now.
Fortunately, there was a claim filed for a water right for the specif-
ic purpose of this conservation area that has now been converted
into a claim pending in that adjudication.
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As a resvlt, hopefully, presumably, any water rights that should
be created for this conservation area will be the subject of that ad-
judication and should be granted as a part of that adjudication. As
a result, it does not seem to be necessary to treat the issue in the
legislation, and my two concerns have been alleviated.

Again, therefore, I strongly support the legislation.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Kyl follows:]
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STATEMENT BY THE
HONORABLE JON KYL

BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON PUBLIC LANDS,
RESERVED WATER AND RESOURCE CONSERVATION

SENATE COMMITTEE ON
ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES

APRIL 30, 1987

Mr. Chairman, and members of the Subcommittee, it is a
privilege to come before you today regarding the legislation to
establish the San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area in

southern Arizona.

The 30-mile long corridor along the San Pedro River which

is .ffected by this particular measure is a unigue riparian
—

habitat with over 260 species of birds, 120 archaeological and

historical sites, and 9 vertebrate fossil sites. We are

. ———
fortunate to be able to take steps today to preserve it. In

fact

, we ought to seize the opportunity to act, especially when

we can minimize adverse impacts on other uses.

While I strongly support the legislation, I have to tell
you that, at first, I had two concerns about the legislation as
it pertains to Federal reserved water rights. I believe
Congress should deal with water rights if it intends that a
right be reserved for a particular Federal use. If not, we

should make the point so that the courts will not later infer
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such a right. The bill does not speak specifically to the issue
of water rights. However, it is my understanding that a right
has been applied for under Arizona law and is being adjudicated
as part of the Gila River adjudication. Therefore, in light of
the legislative history, it is unlikely that the courts wiil
infer a Federal water right for the conservation area. Rather,

the Maricopa County Superior Court will, if warranted, make

water available for the purposes for which the area is being

An additional concern was that such a water right should
not jeopardize the existing water rights of any individuals or
entities. My staff and I investigated to determine whether or
not anyone would be adversely affected by the creation of a
reserved water right. We contacted the Bureau of Land
Management in Safford, Arizona, the Arizona Department of Water
Resources, the Cochise County Board of Supervisors, and the St.

pavid Irrigation District.

We learned that: 1) there are two sand and gravel
operations within the proposed conservation area, one with a
lease that expires at the end of 1987 and one at the end of
1988; 2) that these two operations will continue to receive

water until their leases expire; 3) that 1,300 acres og

agricultural lands within the proposed conservation area have,

not been farmed since the BLM acquired them; 4) that the St.

M
David Irrigation District is diverting water from the San

Pedro, but that its water rights (whi;h date back to the
1800's) will not be jeopardized by the conservation area; and

5) that even if an in-stream use were to be granted by the
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court, users downstream, including the town of Sierra Vista and

the Indian users;, will continue to receive the water they need.

In view of these facts, it does not appear that anyone

will be ieopardized by a water right that might be created by a

pecause of the importance of these issues, I wanted to be
sure that we thoroughly considered those whe might be adversely
affected. I am satisfied that no reserved water right will be
inferred, that no precedent for such a right will be created,
put that a mechanism existz to obtain any necessary in-stream
water rights without harming existing water users. As a
cosponsor of the House-passed bill, I hope the Subcommittee

will act favorably on it.

Thank you.
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Senator HecHT. Thank you very much.
Congressman Kolbe, did you have a statement?

STATEMENT OF HON. JIM KOLBE, A US. REPRESENTATIVE FROM
THE STATE OF ARIZONA

Mr. KoLse. Mr. Chairman, I do have a statement which I will in-
clude in the record, if I might.

Senator HecHr. Thank you. it will be a part of the record.

Mr. Kouse. I will just say very briefly I appreciate the chance to
be here today and your taking the time to schedule S. 252 which is
sponsored by Senators DeConcini and McCain and its companion,
H.R. 568, which I introduced along with the rest of the House dele-
gation.

These companion bills do create the San Pedro Riparian Nation-
al Conservation Area. This legislation was introduced last year. It
passed the House of Representatives. It was considered over here
but largely, as Senator DeConcini suggested, because of concern
about a couple of issues and, frankly, time, as it came at the very
exlld of the session, we just ran out of time and action was not com-
pleted.

We have reintroduced it again this year. It has again passed the
House, and I hope in this early consideration by the 100th Congress
will be able to resolve any difficulties that we have.

1 want to pay tribute to my colleagues who are up here today,
both Senators DeConcini and McCain, for their efforts on behalf of
this bill and certainly to Congressman Kyl and the other members
of the House delegation who worked very hard on this legislation
which I think, as Senator McCain accurately said, is really a very
important piece of public lands legislation, the most important
piece of public lands legislation for the State of Arizona for this
year. 1 would also like to thank the BLM for the work that they
have done.

Mr. Chairman, just a couple of weeks ago Congressman Udall

_and I had an opportunity to go down and visit once again this area.

It is truly extraordinary, and it is hard to imagine this river in a

desert area as it exists there. It is truly an absolutely spectacular

% area with much natural beauty as well as the habitat that is pro-
vided for wildlife and for all kinds of vegetation in the area.

It is worth preserving. It is worth developing in a way that
Americans from all over the country and people from around the
world can enjoy. 1 hope that this legislation can be passed as quick-
ly as possible so that we can give the direction to the Bureau of
Land Management that they need in order to proceed with the

reservation and the protection of this land.

I stand ready to work with your Committee and the staff to work
out any possible problems that may exist with language in the leg-
islation.

Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Kolbe follows:]
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STATEMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE JIM KOLRE

BEFORE THE PUBLIC LANDS, RESERVED WATER
AND RESOURCE CONSERVATION SUBCOMMITTEE
SENATE COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES

ON \1.R. 568, DESIGNATING THE

SAN PTDRO RIPARIAN NATIONAL CONSERVATION AREA

Mr. Chairman -

APRIL 30, 1987

Thank you for scheduling time today to consider S. 252, introduced by

Senators DeConcini and
.introduced. These comp
National Conservation
IR 568 -- passed the H
was introduced and con
time constrafnts, acti
for early consideratio
difficulty again.

Because this legi
by the Senate in 1986,
information. 1 would

McCatn, and tts companion, HR 568, which 1
anfon bills would establish the San Pedro Riparian

Area in Cochise County, Arizona. This legislation

ouse by voice vote on March 25. Similar legislation
sidered in the 99th Congress, but largely because of
on was nnt completed. By scheduling this legislation
n in the 100th Congress, | hope we can avoid this

slation was considered -- in nearly identical form -
I won't spend a great deal of time rehashing old
simply 1ike to point out some of the most compelliing

reasons for passing this legislation.

Mr. Chairman, [ reintroguced this legistation this year with the

strong support of the

people of Arizona, and the Arizona Congressional

delegation. | am honored that Mr. Udall, the distinguished Chairman of the
full Interior Committee signed on as an original co-sponsor, along with the
two new members of the Arizona delegation, Jon Kyl and .Jay Rhodes, and hath

of Arizona’s Senators,

derives from the very

John McCatn and Dennis peConcini. This support
special nature of the San Pedro river area. The area

for designation consists of over 48,000 acves lying in a narvow strip along

Lhirty miles of river

bottom between St. David and tteveford. Along Lhis

river can be found one of the most important dreas in the country for .

riparian wildlife, as

well as archarological and historical sites.

The ecosystem along the river is one of the best remaining in Arizona.
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Because of the year round water, and the riparian forests, the San Pedro is
home to approximately 161 species of birds, including the rare gray hawk:
80 species of mammals; 12 species of fish; and 69 species of reptiles and
amphibians. The area is home to over 100 known prehistoric and historic
sites and nine known fossil sites. We can only guess as to how many more
will be discovered given the time to study the area.

The purposes of this bill are several:

o place the arca under ctewardship of the Bureau of Land Management;

_- Yo define the Resources which Congress believes to be preeminent, and
therefore shall be protected;

-~ To provide direction to the Bureau as they attempt to formalize their
management guidelines;

.. To ensure that the Bureau is carrying out the purposes of this act in

line with Congressional intent by requiring a report to the House and
Senate on the progress and impiementation of this aci;

.. And to ensure full public participation and comment by establishing an
advisory council to assist in the development of the management plan and in
carrying out that plan;

This land was acquired in March of 1986 through a complex, three-party
Tand exchange at no cost to the taxpayer. The Bureau of Land Management
has been working with a volunteer management steering committee in
developing management guidelines to ensure that the process continues in an
open and public way. Without the Bureau’s dedication and high
professionalism, this bil1, and the support that exists for its passage,
would not be possible.

In hearings last year, several members expressed some concerns about
the Conservation area designation, and some specific provisions in this
tegislation. 1'd like to address these concerns, if I might

The changes made by the House Interior Committee last year and this to
the bill generally improve the bill by more specifically directing the kind
of management that is foreseen for this area. It accomplishes this, i
might add, without unnecessarily tying the hands of the actual land
managers. These are the folks who are in the field and must deal with the
reality of managing large, valuable tracts of land in a manner that
protects and enhances this area for the enjoyment of generations to come.

Members last year asked very pointed questions about possible problems
related to the federally reserved water rights controversy. This bill
contains no language about water rights. The BLM has filed an application
for in stream flow adjudication in the Arizona state water court, and their
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right will not interfare with Lhe rights of others in the arca.

Congressman Kyl, a cosponsor of 1IR 568, investigated Lhe water rights /,//////

3 to tell me Lhat "it
west.ion thoroughly, and he sent me a letter vecently ! L
goes not appear that anyone wil! be jeopardized by ‘ho rnsqnvcd wakc\ 'l?h‘
that will be created under thi~ bill." | welcome his testimony hcfozch e
subcommittee, and 1 hope his findings, as well as his expertise, will be

carefully reviewed hy the members of ihis committee.

assed iast year, his pill withdvaws this arca (yvom minnpg.lfrnw_
unautazrgznd off-ruaa vehicle use, and establishes a 15 year moratorium on
grazing to give the BLM Lime to survey the resources of this aﬁga w!thout
. any impact fvom livestock. The purpose of this grazing mn[atn||um |s.no(
to say that this land ts -- or is not -- suitable for grazing. lh{L is ‘gr
the land managers to assess. Grazing in this area, if it did occur, would
be strictly for management purposes to control brush nndgrgrowlh. Y“onn is
no need, at this time, for this management tool Lo be utilized, sole;'__.
Udall and 1 felt that a moratorium of some duration might enable the §Lr iv
do 3 more thorough jeb of surveying the other resources on {hc 1and withouwt
having to dedicate resources to Vivestock management.

in all, Mr, Chairman, this hill vepresents a measured and rosponsible
approach to Yand use designation in the Southwest. As one mem?cr of the
Committee said tast year, this bill is an example of reality ductagnn?‘t»e
substance of legislation, rather than legislation trying to alter nnah ly.
1 am proud to be associated with this legislation, and 1 am hopeful tha
Lhis committee will act swiftly to approve the bill so that the BLM can
move ahead with its fine work in this area.

Thank you for your Lime today, Mr. Chairman.
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Senator Hecut. Thank you very much. Since I am your neighbor,
where exactly is this area located?

Mr. Kouskg. It is located in Cochise County, which is the south-
easternmost county of the state. The San Pedro River runs north
and south. It runs from approximately two miles north of the Mexi-
can border to about 30 miles north of the Mexican border where it
intersects I-10 that crosses southern Arizona there.

Senator HEcHT. | have been in the area many times.

Mr. KoLsg. If you have ever been to Fort Huachuca, it is just
within a couple of miles of Fort Huachuca.

Senator HecHT. I used to be at Fort Huachuca. The Military In-
telligence Board used to meet down there often, so I have been to
Fort Huachuca often.

Mr. KoLBE. Then you have been in the area.

Senator HECHT. I have been in the ares, right.

Mr. KyL. You may have had a chance to picnic there, Mr. Chair-
man.

Senator Hecur. I was there in the late 1960’s and 1970’s when I
used to go to Fort Huachuca all the time. They moved Fort Hola-
bird from Maryland where I took my training to Fort Huachuca.

Mr. KoLBe. We would be happy to have you come back and show
you this area again.

Senator HechT. I have spent a lot of time at Lake Havasu, too,
down there. I used to own a hotel down there.

Mr. KoLBE. Lake Havasu, Arizona, yes.

Senator HrcuT. I am well acquainted with Arizona.

If I was tae real Chairman, not the Acting Chairman, I would
say let us just get the thing rolling, but the rest of the Committee
has to act on it.

If there is nothing further, you may be excused. I know all of you
are busy.

Would you like to come up here, Sister Maurer? Do you have a
statement, Sister?

STATEMENT OF SISTER MARIE BERNARDE MAURER, SISTERS OF

THE GOOD SHEPHERD, SILVER SPRING, MD

Sister MAURER. Yes, I do, Senator.

In 1949 Marie D. Lawton purchased a 40-acre parcel of land from
Clark County in a tax sale. She paid the county for the property.
Since Clark County issued a deed, it is assumed that Mrs. Lawton
accepted that as evidence of title. Mrs. Lawton paid the assessed
property taxes each year until she died in 1975, a period of 26
years. Since the parcel is very remote and was held for investment
during this period, there was no activity, so title searches were
never required.

When Mrs. Lawton died in 1975, she left the property to the Dio-
cese of Reno/Las Vegas to use for the benefit of the Home of the
Good Shepherd.

The Home of the Good Shepherd is run by the Sisters of the
Good Shepherd and is located in a semi-rural setting just north of
Las Vegas. It is a home for delinquent girls regardless of race or
religion. The Home provides a home and school for these delin-
quent girls. There are 56 girls currently living there.
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The home and school occupy a 920-acre parcel of land. The Home
of the Good Shepherd provides the only alternative in Nevada to
the State Girls School in Caliente. These girls are referred by the
Youth Service Division of the State of Nevada, Nevada State Wel-
fare, and the Clark County Juvenile Court. The Home also has
girls from Utah and Arizona referred by agencies in those states.

The Diocese of Reno/Las Vegas received the land through an
estate and never questioned the authenticity of ownership. The Di-
ocese paid the assessed taxes on the property and continues to do
so. This property has now been owned adversely, and taxes have
been paid for 38 years.

In November of 1985 after a title search, it was determined that
this 40-acre parcel was in fact owned by the Bureau of Land Man-
agement, and Clark County never held title.

The Bureau of Land Management has been very cooperative and
advised an application through their Color of Title Act to gain title.
We qualified through adverse ownership and paying taxes but the
property had not been improved or cultivated, which are require-
ments under this Act.

The property was not cultivated because it is not farmland, and
it was not improved because the property is inaccessible and no
utilities are available. The use of the property is either to hold for
a long period for a potential use or as an investment to resell and
to use any proceeds for the benefit of the Home of the Good Shep-
herd and its programs.

In December of 1985 the District Manager of the Bureau of Land
Management disapproved the Color of Title application because the
land was not cultivated or improved. As one alternative, special
legislation was suggested. In March of 1986 Senators Laxalt and
Hecht introduced a bill, but it was not acted on by the 99th Con-
gress. In February of this year Senator Hecht introduced the bill
you are reviewing today.

On behalf of the Home of the Good Shepherd, I ask you today t
please consider this bill, as its passage can benefit troubled youn
girls and some important programs.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Sister Maurer follows:]

0 O
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Senator Hecut. Thank you very much for that very, very fine
statement. We are all very, very proud of the Home of the Good
2 of 2 Shepherd. They have done tremendous work in Las Vegas, Clark
County for girls all around the state. They have rehabilitated
young girls and sent them back to their families. It is a very worth-

The a:.n.;audof Land P;anagement has been very cooperative while cause, and 1 cannot believe, Bob, that after paying taxes for
and advised an application throught their %Colo ~of-Titla" i i
Act to gain title, However) ve qualified thr;u;h adverse an these years and haymg squatters glghts on that prOperty’ that
l;vnersh(iip and ;;aying ;axes but the property had not been you WOl.lld even ODJEC'C to it. [Laughter.J
mproved or cultivate which are reguirements under this
Act. The property was not cultivated because it is not !'{OW COllld gny(:.ne‘_ be so callous. . .
farm land and it vas not improved because the property Mr. BURFORD. Let me assure you 1 did not write the Color of
. essible and no utilitles are available. Th : p : 4 AT 3
of the property is to either hold for a long period © ouse Title Act and put !;hose two req_un‘emepts in there, nor did I write
:nzo;%;:ésu:groih:sb:n investnent to resell and to use the R&PP Act which has certain requirements that 1 must follow
e . .
nefit of the Home of the Good as a servant to the Federal Government. If it were strictly my own

Shepherd and its programs.

h : . .
- becember of 1985 the District Manager of the Buresu of wish and desire, I would hand the title over right now. I cannot do

I;gguuan:gement disapproved the wColor-of-Title® application it" however' . .

S ernative ;;:gg:agg;;:;;ga;:g i i The power to do that resides only with the Congress and the Ad-

of 1986 Senator Laxait and Senator Hecht introduced a ministration. I have no idea what the reaction of the Administra-

111, but it was not acted.on by the 99th Co . I i 1 1

February of.th§s year Senator Hecht introduc:gxiez;snse bilr; tion WOUld be to the passag.e of the bill. .We df) (.)ppose lt’ as we

you are’ revieving today. oppose all transfers of public land. Sometimes it is very hard for

On behalf of the Home of g.he Good Shepherd I ask you today me to teStlfy’ espe01ally When I am Slt.tlng neXt to a young lady

to please consider this bill as its passage can benefit who may be one of the few chances 1 mlght have to appear well in

troubled young girls and some important programse. the eyes Of the LOI'd

Thank you. Senator HecuT. Then it would be good for you to sit next to her.
Lo Mane Geoandl, Jrases, ¥65 [Laughter.]

It would not be so good for the Sister, but for you it is good.

Well, 1 appreciate the fact that you want to work with us on this
because, after all, paying taxes all of these years and being a
worthwhile charity which is supported by private contriputions all
around the state—The Home of the Good Shepherd has been sup-
ported for many, many years by Nevada’s legislature. When 1 was
a State Senator we supported it, and it is strictly one of the great
things of which we are very, very proud because State and private
contributions and the Catholic Church does just tremendous work
down there.

Sister, thank you very much for appearing, and we will do every-
thing we can. Thank you very much.

Senator Wallop has a statement which we will put into the
record.

[The prepared statement of Senator Wallop follows:]
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A STATEMENT BY MALCOLM WALLOP
A Senator From Wyoming
Before the Public Lands, National Parks and Forests Subcommittee
on H.R. 568 and &, 252
April 30, 1987

vr. Chairman, 1 support the Arizona congressional delegation
in.their efforts to have Congress :eéognize the attempt of the
BLK in Arizona to provide protection for the San Pedro River by
establishing a National Riparian Conservation Area.

However, I still have two concerns which 1 expressed last
year on this legislation and which still exist. The first
concern is with the statutory ban of 15 years for grazing in the
area. Who is kidding who? A proposition that says there will be
no grazing for 15 years, really means there will be no grazing
ever again. You cannot go into the business and out of the
business and back into the business. 1 understand that as a
practical matter grazing is terminated in the area this year by
the expiration of an existing lease. why the need for the
statutory ban? I don't like the precedent.

The second issue is the issue raised by the gilence in the
measure on water rights. This is the first statutory withdrawal
from the public domain and with it comes an implied federal
reserved water right. Many Members of the Senate feel that the
right should be defined by Congress rather than the courts. I
intend to offer an amendment when the measure comes before the

Committee.
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Senator HecHT. Bob, I think you ought to hang around for Sena-
tor Bumpers. He might have some questions for you.

Mr. Burrorp. I do not have anything else. If the Senator is going
to appear pretty quick, I will wait until he gets here.

Senator HECHT. As far as I know, he was going to—here he is,
right here.

Senator BuMPERSs [presiding]. Mr. Burford, let me ask you one or
two quick questions for the record. Given the special attributes of
this land, what purposes, if any, do you think ought to be prohibit-
ed on it? I am talking about—let us talk about what could be pro-
hibited. Anything?

Mr. BurrForp. Yes. We think it should be closed to the mining
law. We think it should be open to the Mineral Leasing Act, and
the Material Sales Act because if it is necessary to gravel some of
those roads, we could get gravel there under the land which is
called for in the Act to be planned in conjunction with the profes-
sional land managers and the San Pedro Advisory Board. We feel
that they should make those decisions on prohibited activities be-
cause they are familiar with the ground. I had the same discussion
with Congressman Udall and my statement at that time was that I
did not feel that I as someone living on the Potomac should dictate
to the local people exactly what the plan should contain. They will
start planning. I think they have already done some preliminary
work on planning, and they will continue to make a plan. Until a
plan is adopted practically all activities are prohibited until that
plan is accepted by the State Director.

Senator BUMPERS. Are there any oil and gas wells on this proper-
ty now that are in production?

Mr. Burrorp. Not to my knowledge.

Senator BumpERs. Do you know what the potential, if any, is for
oil and gas?

Mr. BurForp. I might ask Dean Bibles if he has any geologic in-
formation. Dean Bibles is the State Director for the State of Arizo-
na and will be the man who is directly in charge of going over the
plan when it is finalized. We did suggest that it be left open to oil
and gas leasing, mineral leasing, and geothermal leasing in the
event those resources are available. I do not know what the poten-
tial is. Arizona in general has very little oil and gas potential
throughout the State.

Senator BUMPERs. Is grazing right the principal concern of the
BLM on this?

Mr. BurrorDp. Yes. I think I could characterize my concern
mainly as the fact that we like to manage land under multiple-use
principles and we think grazing is one of the multiple uses. It may
be that th=t advisory board will say this particular piece of land
should not be grazed for a period of 10 years, 15, 20 years. I do not
know what they will come up with. But if the planners make that
statement or if the planners say it should be grazed under certain
conditions, could be grazed under certain conditions like transpor-
tation of water away from the river, we have several examples of
different ways that we protect riparian areas.

My guess is that the advisory counsel on its own initiative is
probably going to put a moratorium for a certain length of time on
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grazing down there, but we do not like to see it legislated from the
banks of the Potomac, as it were, for the banks of the San Pedro.
hSen?ator BumpErs. Thank you, Bob. Do you want to add some-
thing?

Mr. Burrorp. I would say—Dean reminded me—if there was
much potential there it probably would not have been able to——

Senator BumpERs. 1 would not think Tenneco would turn it loose
if they thought it had any potential.

Mr. Burrorp. They probably would not turn it loose if they
thought it had any potential for production.

Senator BUMPERs. Stranger things have happened, just like in
Port Chaffee, Arkansas, 1 remember when they condemned that
land in 1940 and got it for $50 an acre, and ncbody thought there
was any oil or gas within a million miles of there. So you can never
quite tell. I am sure this does not have much promise.

Thank you very much for coming.

Mr. BuRFoRrD. You are letting me off awfully easy.

Senator Bumpers. That is because 1 do not know enough about
this, Bob. :

Our next witnesses are C. Eugene Knoder, field representative of
the Rocky Mountain Office of the Audubon Society, and Debbie
Sease of the Sierra Club, as a panel. If both of you would come for-
ward, please.

Mr. Knoder, would you proceed, please? Did I pronounce your
name correctly?

STATEMENT OF C. EUGENE KNODER, ROCKY MOUNTAIN
REGIONAL REPRESENTATIVE, NATIONAL AUDUBON SOCIETY

Mr. KnopEer. You surely did, Mr. Chairman, and that is unusual.

I have a prepared statement, Mr. Chairman, that I would like to
submit for the record, but I will try to summarize that since much
of what I have got to say has already been said and I would merely
be repeating. I want to appear here on behalf of the National Au-
dubon Society in support of Senate 252.

The preservation and protection of the San Pedro area has been
a high priority of the members of the National Audubon Society in
Arizona for at least the past 15 years. We make a practice of work-
ing with our State chapters and State councils in setting up conser-
vation priorities in each State, and the protection of the San Pedro
area has been the top priority of our Arizona members for a
number of years.

We believe the legislation has been refined and carefully crafted
over a period of years through Senate hearings and through exten-
sive discussion in public meetings and in the newspapers in Arizo-
na. And we believe the legislation is in good shape now, and we
would like to recommend it and endorse it as it stands, and urge
the Senate to proceed with it.

A couple of controversial measures in the bill. One of them is
with regard to livestock razing. And if I could, I will concentrate
on that for a moment. We support strongly the Arizona delega-
tion’s views that a 15-year moratorium on livestock grazing as an
interim Congressional mandate is entirely appropriate. I would like
to stress that we would prefer an outright prohibition on livestock

nrr
Ot

grazing because we think it is an inappropriate use of a limited,
very fragile riparian area.

I'do not think I need to dwell on the importance of this riparian
area as a wildlife—it is a tremendously important area for wildlife
in the arid desert southwest.

And finally, we would really like to express our appreciation to
ihe Bureau of Land Management and especially Dean Bibles, the
State director, for his resourcefulness and initiative in acquiring
these lands from the Tenneco Corporation and making possible
their protection as a part of the public lands. We think this is very
much in the broad public interest.

We also wish to commend Senators DeConcini and McCain and
Representatives Colby and Kyl and other members of the Arizona
Congressional delegation for introducing and supporting this bill.
Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Knoder follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, thank you for the
opportunity to appear before you today on behalf of the National Audubon
Society in support of S. 252.

This bill has the strong endorsement of the National Audubon Society and
of the six Audubon chapters and over 6,000 members in Arizona. Protection of
the rare and dwindling riparian ecosystem has long been a major priority of
Arizona Audubon members, therefore, they enthusiastically support this
iegisiatioa, which will help accomplish that goal.

s. 252 is a carefully crafted bill that has benefitted from extensive
pubiic discussion and previous House and Senate hearings. This bill would
designate approximately 2 10 mile stretch of the San Pedro River and adjacent
public lands as the San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area to be
administered by the Bureau of Land Management.

This legislation has been carefully designed to assure protection of ...
the riparian arca and the aquatic, wildlife, archaeological, paleontological,
scientific, cultural, educational, and recreational resources of the
conservation area ..." The size of the conservation area shall not exceed
48,707 acres or roughly 1,600 acres per mile of river. An essential feature
of the bill is a provision requiring the Secretary of the Interior to develop,
within two years, 2 comprehensive, long range plan for the management and
protection of the conservation area. Importantly, the bill provides for
public participation during the development of the plan and for the
appointment of a nulti-disciplinary committee to advise the Secretary
regarding the provisions of the plan. These two provisions are key elements
of an open society which we applaud.

The bill further outlines provisions which permit the Secretary to allow
other uses under certain conditions. Essentially it would forbid sale or
disposition of the lands, permit him/her to limit visitor use as a resource
protection measure, conduct certain types of research, allow for cooperative
agreements with state and local governments, provide for reports to Congress,
and establish a penalty section.

With regard to the provision for a 15 year moratorium on livestock
grazing, we concur that this is an entirely appropriate interim Congressional
mandate, While we would have preferred an outright prohibition on grazing in
this limited and fragile riparian area, we believe the moratorium represents a
reasonable compromise for the purposes of n_..study, evaluation, and

monitoring ... in the absence of livestock grazing ...

1 think we are all familiar with the fact that riparian ecosystems constitute
a small but extremely vital habitat for wildlife in the arid 1ands of the
West. The San Pedro River is exceptional in the desert southwest because it
still maintains year-around flows, it still supports a corridor of magnificent
gallery cottonwoods and it retains much of its original flora and fauna.
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Approximately 210 species of birds occur in the area as well as an
impressive variety of mammal species, Included are several species that are
rare in the United States, such as the Black, Zone-Tailed, and Gray hawks.
Historically, the San Pedro is home for endangered species such as the Ocelot,
Jaguarundi and Peregrine falcon and these species may yet persist in the
area. This abundance of wildlife is made possible only because the San Pedro
constitutes an oasis in an otherwise arid, desert land. The San Pedro is a
rich biotic and cultural resource and, in the view of the National Audubon
Society, one well worth our stringent efforts to protect.

Fina_lly, Mr. Chairman, we want to commend the Bureau of Land Management
for its resourcefulness and initiative in acquiring these lands from the
Tenneco Corporation and making possible the actions which we are discussing
!i\.e:e today. We believe the Bureau has acted very much in the broad public
nterest.

We also wish to commend Senator DeConcini, Representative Kolbe and other
merpbers of the Arizona congressional delegation for introducing and supporting
this legislation.

I have personally spent considerable time in southeastern Arizona over the
past several years and I know the San Pedro proposal enjoys wide public
support. We believe it is urgent that this bill be enacted into legislation
and we urge this subcommittee and the Senate to move on it expeditiously.

s nt\ank you for the opportunity to present the views of the National Audubon
ciety.

0123¢
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Senator BumpEeRs. Thank you.
Ms. Sease.

STATEMENT OF DEBBIE SEASE, WASHINGTON REPRESENTATIVE,
SIERRA CLUB

Ms. Sease. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am testifying today on
behalf of the Sierra Club. I am also joined in these views by Ameri-
can Rivers and the Wilderness Society, whe would like to have
their names associated with these views today.

T will summarize my statement and would like it to be made a
part of the record.

Our organizations enthusiastically support S. 252. We would like
to commend the Arizona delegation and the State director, Dean
Bibles, for their work in developing this proposal. We think it is an
excellent proposal. And one that will protect a river and an area
that is very much deserving of that protection.

San Pedro has been studied for years for a variety of designa-
tions. It was found to be suitable for inclusion in the Fish and
Wildlife Service as a national wildlife refuge. It has been proposed
for a natural area designation. It has been proposed for everything
from a county park to an international park.

Part of the reason for this is that riparian areas in the south-
west, desert rivers, woodlands are so rare. San Pedro has been
threatened. It has been changed. Currently it retains about 75 per-
cent of its native biota but that is in comparison to other nearby
southwestern rivers which retain 5 or 10 percent of theirs, so it
makes it a very unique and special area.

It continues to be threatened by further development pressure.
Fort Huachuca, which is nearby, is——

Senator BUMPERS. Are these Indian tribes? Are there Indian
tribes up and down that river?

Ms. SEase. Not in the portion that I am familiar with. Fort Hua-
chuca is not a reservation. It is a small city, and it is one that has
got a military installation there and is growing.

Senator BumpERS. What is the military reservation?

Ms. SEASE. I think it is called Fort Huachuca. There is increased
ORV use in the area. Currently half of the river mileage is grazed.
The other half is not. There is a very discernable difference in the
part that is being even lightly grazed and the part that has not
been grazed in recent years. The protection provided by this bill, I
think, is essential to retain this river character and to restore it to
what it may have been like before the developments that came in
this century.

There are a couple of management provisions in the legislation
that I would like to bring to the committee’s attention that I think
are very, very good. There has been a lot of discussion with the
agency about how do you provide management guidance without
dotting every “i” and crossing every “t” and leaving the administra-
tion flexibility to make decisions on a case by case basis.

Section 2(b) of this bill I think provides a standard that provides
both the flexibility and the guidance. It says in short that uses
shall be allowed only if they further the purposes, the primary pur-
poses of the conservation area. That allows the manager to decide
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what to allow and what not to allow, but it gives him a standard
that says this use, should it be a hiking trail or developing a new
road? Does this further the purposes of the San Pedro conservation
area? I will allow it if it does. I will not if it does not.

Grazing has come up as an issue. Our original proposal on this
legislation was that there be an outright permanent ban on graz-
ing. We were convinced that a compromise or a 15-year moratori-
um would be appropriate in part because we believed that 15 years
in the absence of grazing of this area with research and monitoring
will show that further grazing would not further the purposes of
this area’s designation, and that it would administratively continue
to be prohibited in the area.

We feel the 15-year moratorium is necessary because it is very
difficult for the agency to withstand the pressures to eliminate
grazing in an area. There are a couple of permits that within the
next year will have expired, and it 1s our belief that the adminis-
tration does not propose to renew those permits, so we would like
to see this 15-year moratorium retained in the legislation.

In summary, our organizations strongly support this measure,
and would urge quick passage of it.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Sease follows:]

73

330 Pennsylvania Avenue, S.E.. Washington, D.C. 2603 (202] 547- 1141

STATEMENT OF DEBBIE SEASE, WASHINGTUN REPRESENTATIVE, SIERRA CLUB
ON BEHALF OF
SIERRA CLUB, THE WILDERNESS SOCIETY AND AMERICAN RIVERS
BEFORE THE ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCE COMMITTEE'S
SUBCOMMITTEE ON PUBLIC LANDS
REGARDING S. 252

L ted
{

APRIL 30, 155

Mr . Chairman, Members of the Subcommittee, I appreciate this opportunity
to testify on behalf of the Sierra Club regarding S. 252 a bill to
establish the San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area . My
testimony today also reflects the views of The Wilderness Society and
American Rivers. Together our organizations consist of more than
600,000 individuals cancerned with the protection of our environment for
the benefit of present and future generations.

The intent of this bill is to set aside some 43,000 acres of the Upper
San Pedro riparian ecosystem for federal protection and rehabilitation.
This is an area rich in cultural and biotic resources which deserves to
be protected and preserved for future generations.

Our organizations enthusiatically support 5. 252 as a measure to ensure
the restoration and protection of the San Pedro riparian ecosystem., We
urge this Committee to report this bill and move it expeditiously
through the Senate.

More than a decade ago, the Fish and Wildlife Service jdentified the 3an
pedro as a unique ecosystem suitable for inclusion in the National
Wildlife Refuge System. Portions of the San Pedro have been proposed as
Natural Areas to be preserved under the Arizona Natural Heritage
program. Portions have also been proposed as county, state, federal and
international parks for the preservation of important historic and
prehistoric resources,

All these proposals indicate the importance of the San Pedro as a biotlc
resource, supporting one of the greatest diversities of species of any
locale in North America; and as a rieh cultural resource, containing
records of mankind's continuous habitation for more than 10,000 years;
and the social interchanges between early peoples who used the San Pedro
as a trade corridor between North and Central America. Sadly, none of
these proposals has come to fruition, and the San Pedro has become
increasingly subject to the impacts of population pressure, including
the trampling of vegetation, ORV damage to the landscape, har vesting of
riparian trees for fuelwood, and vandalizing of cultural and
paleonmlnglcnl sites,

~When we try to pick out anything by itself, we find it hitched to everything clse in the universe.” John Muir
National Headquarters: 730 Polk Strect, San Francisco, California 941y (415} 776-2211
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S. 252 brings together the mutual goals of most previous proposals. The
pill offers an opportunity not anly to restore the San pedrc Area to
something like its natural conditions of diversity and productivity, but
also to provide a benchmark for research and evaluation of southwestern
riparian ecosystems.

Rivers aid their environs are very special in the southwest , and very
fragile. Without special care, they dwindle away into gullies and dry
washes. Those that remain are survivors, In southeast Arizona, the San
Fedro is the only one left in a relatively healthy condition of
diversity and productivity. Unlike the Pecos River, which has been
stripped of 95% of its estimated historic native flora, and the Gila,
which has lost 90%, the San Pedro supports one of the longest stretches
of riparian habitat in the Southwestern United States and retains some
75% of its native flora (USFWS 19%5). It is a unique reminder of what

our rivers used te be.

But none of our remaining desert rivers has survived without scars,
Portions of the San pedro are still relatively lush and rich with
H,Hg};{e but other parts have suffered drastic reductions in biotic

€} and productivity. Although in better shape than most
southwest river systems, the San Pedro too has been adversely affected
by a weoncentration of agricultural, municipal and industrial
development in river valleys [that] has reduced or destroyed both
terrestrial and aquatic wildlife habitats" (Ohmart 1982). The word
agricultural in that quotation should be under stood to mean livestock
ranching as well as the farming of vegetable crops.

A century ago the San Pedro supported a lively fishery, including ove
species of native fish that grew to several feet in length. Today the
river is still perennial, but during dry seasons the surface water
sometimes ducks under the riverbed and resurfaces at some distance
downstream. Banks that used to be many feet apart are now sometimes
separated by only a trickle.

The river is still alive and running, but it is not what it used to be.
If it reminds us of a rich past, it also reminds of us what we have
jost, and of our present responsibilities to properly manage what little
we have left. The forces that have reduced the size and diversity of
the riparian system over the past hundred years are still at work.
Besides the very real risks of pollution from agriculture, industry,
military and civilian dumping, and the incessant erosive pressure of
livestock grazing during the past two decades, the San Pedro system has
also had to endure the effects of a population explosion as more and
more peaple migrate to the sunbelt from the eastern and northern states.
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The Arizona Department of Water Resources reports, for instance, that
for several years now. excessive pumping has been overdrafting the
groundwater and contributing to the San Pedro's decline (DWR 1935).
pPopulation growth has also brought the threat of subdivision, as the
wooded riversides become more and more valuable in a vigorous real
estate market. The acreage included in this bill was very nearly sold
in small parcels as "ranchetts".

Seme of these threats are already being dealt with. The subdivision
threat, for instance, has largely been avertied by putting most of the
wet riparian area into public owner ship under BLM management. If recent
agreement.s betuween the U.S. and Mexican governments are kept by both
sides, we will also avert some serious tnreats of aie and water
pollution from the Smelter Triangle south and east of the Conservation
Area. Furthermore, the EPA has recently ordered the Phelps Dodge mine
in Bisbee to stop contaminating tributaries to the San pPedro with toxic
metals, and the State of Arizona has recently enacted two of the most
progressive water quantity and quality 1aws in the nation, Local
conservationists are working with BLM to guarantse protection of the San
Pedro under the new Arizona statutes.

These actions are more remedial than rehabilitative, They address
specific acute problems rather than implement a comprehensive plan for
protection of the riparian system as 2a whole, S. 252 can provide for
the comprehensive protection that bilologists, anthropologlists,
conservationists and others have called for repeatedly over the past
quarter century.

T would like to draw the Committee's attention to the excellent
Congressional guidance provided by Section 2 of the bill regarding the
future management of the area. Section 2(b) directs the Secretary to
allow only uses which further the primary purposes of the conservation
area. This seems an imminently sensible approach. National
Conservation Area designations have no generic management authorities
such as national parks or wilderness designations do. A specific
management perscription has been developed for each NCA.

We also support the provision 1imiting use of motor ized vehicles to
roads designated through the management plan. Delicate riparian areas
like San Pedro are most vulnerable to destruction by uncontrolled use of
off road vehicles. Such use would be tatally incompatible with the very
purposes for Wwhich the conservation area {s being established. With the
ever growing use of off road vehicles in the southwest, the agency will
doubtless be pressured to allow ORY use in the conservation area.
Although the agency would be within its authority to limit motor use to
designated roads within the conservation area, it is wise for Congress
to clearly express its intent with regard to the use of motor vehicles
in the area.
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Section 2(d) withdraws the area from mineral leasing and entry under the
Mining Law of 1872. This withdrawal is particularly impor tant because
of the limited Secretarial discretion with regard to mining operations,

Section 2(¢) requires that the Secretary {ssue no grazing permits within
the conservation area for a period of 15 years in order to study,
evaluate and moniter the riparien resource in the absence of livestock
grazing. Our organizations fully support this provision as an essentlal
element of the legislation, We believe that this fifteen-year

mor ator ium will previde invaluable data regarding the effects of grazing
on sensitive riparian areas., The agency {s currently involved in
pumerous riparian/grazing management studiss and exper iments. All of
these studies involve monitoring the riparian habitat with domestic
1ivestock grazing, or at most only with very small sections excluding
cattle, The San Pedro Riparian Conservation Area provides a unique
apportunity for riper ian management research, We believe that the
grazing moratorium is eritical -- without it, we are skeptical that
cattle would ever be removed from the area. BLM managers are under
extreme political pressure from the livestock industry to continue the
laissez-faire grazing management of yesteryear. All attempts to reduce
the numbers of cattle on the pudblic range have been met with vigorous
opposition.

Our organizations fully support the proposal developed by the Arizona
delegation embodied in 8 252 and the House companion H.R. 568 and urge
rapid passage of this measure. Thank you for your attention and
consideration.

7

Senator Bumpers. How big is the flow of this river where it
crosses the border into Mexico normally?

Ms. SEASE. I am guessing, but I would assume it is a couple of
hundred CFS, and that is a guesstimate. Perhaps you would have a
better sense of that.

Senator BumpERs. What is the source of the water? Here is one
of the most arid parts of the United States, and here is this river
running down here. Where in the north does that water come
from? It is not from rainfall, is it?

Mr. KNODER. Mr. Chairman, if 1 could, I believe there has just
been a report released by the Arizona Water Resources Depart-
ment that addresses those questions and the connection between
ground water and surface water in the area, but I have not yet
seen that report. I understand it was just released a week or two
ago.

Senator BuMpERS. Ms. Sease, in your testimony you point out in
some places the water actually goes underground and then resur-
faces at some point downstream.

Ms. SEASE. Yes.

Senator BUMPERS. At some times during the year?

Ms. SEASE. Yes.

Senator BumpERS. Are we going to have any trouble with the
government of Mexico about our use of the water? Have we had
any problems in the past? Do they object to our use of the water in
anglway?

s. SEask. I would assume that this designation would certainly
not create any. This designation would ensure that no upstream di-
versions took water out of it, but there are currently users down-
stream of this designation and prior to entering Mexico who have
water rights and want to see this water flow through to them. One
of the effects of the legislation would be, if the riparian area is re-
stored, to increase the flow in this river, because shade from the
trees, because of the grazing, when it is eliminated will—the
stream banks that are in good shape hold water better than ones
that are not, so there will be less evaporation and less erosion.

Senator BUMPERS. Well, is the plan to be developed by Interior as
anticipated under this bill? Is that also not only dealing with the
grazing rights but also the use of that water for agricultural pur-
poses? Apparently a lot of that water is now being used for irriga-
tion, is it not?

Ms. SEase. Downstream of the area and upstream of the area.

Senator Bumpers. I thought upstream it was being used for irri-
gation. Is it not?

Ms. Seask. I guess I would have to refer back to the map.

Senator BumpERs. Staff tells me that the small community of
Sierra Vista uses it for their municipal water supply, and that is
upstream.

Ms. Seasg. Okay.

Senator BumpERs. Now, is it also being used for agricultural pur-
poses, is it not? None of it is being taken out for irrigation?

Ms. SEASE. I am not certain on that. What I do know is that the
Bureau of Land Management and the Sierra Club have filed in Ari-
zona for appropriative water risghts. They did this a couple of years

ago for instream flows, and State law in Arizona recognizes in-
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stream flow as a valid use. So there is a pending water right appli-
cation by what will be a senior applicant. The Sierra Club has
ceded their application to the Bureau of Land Management, so
theirs is even more senior than the Bureau’s was. So this legisla-
tion, if it created a water right, would be junior in time to one that
is already on the books, so I don’t think that this is going to have
any effect on consumption of water either up or downstream.

Senator BuMPERS. Do both of you agree on the—I think the bill
provides for 15-year moratorium on grazing rights. Do you both
agree with that?

Ms. SEASE. Yes.

Mr. KNODER. Yes.

Senator BumMpERS. Well, it is not often you chair a committee
hearing where everybody pretty much agrees with the bill except
for just two or three minor changes. I guess that accounts for the
small attendance this morning. Everybody agrees that generally
this is a good piece of legislation. And so %,appreciate both of you
being here this morning to express your views on it. Thank you
very much.

Ms. SEase. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator BuMpERS. Our last witness this morning is Burton Eller,
vice president of government affairs of the National Cattlemen’s
Association. Mr. Eller.

You are not going to be the skunk at the lawn party and tear
everything up here that is so harmonious this morning, are you?

STATEMENT OF J. BURTON ELLER, JR., VICE PRESIDENT, GOV-
ERNMENT AFFAIRS, NATIONAL CATTLEMEN’S ASSOCIATION,
ACCOMPANIED BY PATTY McDONALD, PUBLIC LAND SPECIAL-
IST

Mr. ELLER. No, sir.

Senator BumpERs. Good.

Mr. ELLER. Two or three little changes, and we will be fine.

Mr. Chairman, let me ask Patty McDonald, who is our public
land specialist, to join me at the table this morning.

Senator Bumpers. We welcome both of you. Thank you for
coming.

Mr. ELLer. Thank you for inviting us. We are both representing
the National Cattlemen and its 230,000 members and our 217,000
sheep and cattle ranchers who use the public lands in the west,
and as we did last year and as we have done on the House side, I
compliment the Arizona livestock industry, the BLM, the other or-
ganizations, the wildlife and other organizations who have worked
out this trade of an area that seems to be so natural for such a
trade. Apparently the values there and the manner in which the
trade has taken place have been nothing but proper and above-
board and laudable. And we think that is the way to go about it,
willing parties making trades for the future.

We do remain concerned about two or three aspects of this bill.
First, the exclusion of livestock grazing for 15 years across the
board in mandate and in statute concerns us greatly, and we do
recognize that the House put report language in basically stipulat-
ing that this should not be a precedent, but as Congress goes down
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the road the past tells us that that perhaps makes no difference,
that once you do it precedence is set, even if the intent of Congress
is that we will do it this time but never again we will not do it.
Sometimes that—most of the time that does not carry forward to
the next piece of legislation.

Good management and protection of public lands and riparian
areas we think is very compatible with good livestock grazing. The
House report and the environmental reports I have seen that justi-
Sied this trade definitely state that San Pedro is and was desert ri-
parian in good condition. The legislation before us seeks to elimi-
nate livestock grazing to provide the opportunity for a study, eval-
uation, and monitoring of riparian areas in the absence of livestock
grazing. We have to ask, why in the absence of livestock grazing? If
such a study is to truly be meaningful, we would suggest that a
better approach would be to graze at least some of the San Pedro
under good, accepted management practices in order to draw valid
conclusions about the nongrazed portion and the grazed portion.

Legislated restrictions banning grazing preempts the land use of
BLM, and I will not go back and talk over Bob Burford’s reasons
that he would like to be able to manage it. I think Bob can well
speak for himself, but as you know, the livestock industry has of-
fered over the last several years to join with BLM and good man-
agement. The local advisory panels have the expertise, and we are
willing to participate on the local advisory panels. They know more
than we do at the national level, and our local ranchers are partici-
pating in local advisory panels. We believe that is the way it
should be.

I do commend the Arizona livestock industry and the Arizona
delegation for attempting to ensure that this legislation does not
preempt grazing. Unfortunately, I think that fell just a little short.
I do laud their efforts, however.

Secondly, Mr. Chairman, we are very concerned about the issue
of Federal Reserve water rights. Neither the House bill nor the
Senate bill addresses this issue. However, this is the first withdraw-
al of public domain lands, and with it comes the implied Federal
Reserve water right. Congress, we believe, does have the Tesponsi- |
bility to define what that right is rather than leaving it up to the
future courts to interpret or misinterpret the intent of Congress.
There is a great deal of uncertainty as a result of the Sierra Club
versus Block decision in Colorado over this issue. We believe Con-
gress should spell out its intent and require that the Federal Gov-
ernment assert any water rights through the State water right
system.

Mr. Chairman, the cattle industry and the livestock industry of
the west appreciate the opportunity to be here.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Eller follows:]
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PUBLIC LANDS COUNCIL

“A Waslern Livestock Public Land User Orgamzation”

STATEMENT
of the

National Cattlemen's Association

and

public Lands Council

regarding H.R. 568 & S. 252
THE SAN PEDRO RIPARIAN NATIONAL CONSERVATION AREA
before the

Subcomittee on public Lands, National Parks and Forests

Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources
Aprit 30, 1987

J. Burton Eller, Jre, Vice President Government Affairs

National Cattiemen's Association

emen's Assoctation {s a non-profit trade association representing

000 professional cattlemen throughout the nation, including individual
members, 48 affiliated state cattle associations, and 23 affiliated national breed

Lands Council represents the 27,000 western ranchers who
graze cattle acd sheep on federal Yands in 13 western states, and is aiso supported by

the Hational Caztlemen's Association, Natfonal Woolgrowers Association, and the
Association of vational Grassiands.
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Mr. Chairman, the National Cattlemen's Association and Public Lands Council
appreciate the opportunity to testify on H.R. 568 and S. 252, bills to
establish a San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area in Cochise County,

Arizona.

The organizations 1 represent today would like to compliment the Department
of the Interior and tie guresu of Land Management for the way in which they
accomplished the 1and exchange creating the proposed San pedro Riparian
National Conservation Area. Both the private landowner and the federal
government agreed to the exchange, aﬁd are reportedly pleased with the

result.

Moreover, we recognize that a great deal of hard work by the Arizona
congressional delegation and others has gone into these proposals, and we
share their interest in protecting the riparian, wildlife, archaeological,
paleontological, scientific, cultural, educational and recreational

resources of the San Pedro area.

However, we remain concerned about two aspects of these bills. First, we
oppose the legislated exclusion of tivestock grazing for 15 years from the
area. We are concerned that this ban could set an unfortunate and
unnecessary precedent for future legistation affecting public rangelands.
There are those who want to Vimit or ban livestock grazing on many of all
public lands under the mistaken notion that grazing hams the environment,

riparian areas, and wildlife habitat. While clearly there have been and
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remain problems with overgrazing in so-e areas, every good range manager
knows that proper livestock graziny can serve as a valuable management tool.
Good grazing management can be used To manipulate plant and shrub species
for a varfety of aultiple uyse purposes, 4nd can actually improve range and
wildlife hebitat conditions. BLM munages many riparian areas in Arizona and
elsewherc, and has demonstrated that properly managed Yivestock grazing fs
compatible with improving riparian ecosystems in a number of areas, BLM
_recently adopted a new ~iparian management policy to maintain, restore, and
improve riparian values to achieve healthy and productive ecological

conditions for maximum iong-term benefits,

The point is that good management and protection of public lands and
riparian areas can be compatible with good livestock yrazing. The San Pedro
area has not been mismanaged, overgrazed, or experienced riparian
degradation under agency and private management. It is desert riparfan
habitat in good condition. The Jegislation before us seeks to eliminate
Vivestock grazing, ostensibly to “provide an opportunity for the study,
evaluation, and monitoring of riparian areas in the absence of livestock
grazing." Why in the absence of grazing? If such a2 study is to be truly
meaningful, we would suggest that a better approach would be to graze at
least some of the San Pedro under good management practices, in order to

draw valid conclusions about the non-grazed portion,

Moreover, legislated restr~ictions such as banning grazing preempts the land

use planning process and ties the hands of land managers, We agree with BLM
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that the best way to manage this area and other BLM lands is via the land
use planning p established by FLPMA  with public participation and in
this case with the guidance of a new San Pedro Advisory Council. We believe
that the land management agency and professional land managers on the
ground, who are familiar with the resource, snould have the flexibility to
use a full array of management tools, including grazing, to manage and

protect this area. The land er could well decide against allowing
future grazing, which is fine, but we believe it is far preferable to leave
such management decisions to the agency, rather than see Congress pass laws

barring certain management perogatives for 15 years.

Let me add that the livestock industry is aware that the House bill and the
Arizona delegation have attempted to ensure that this legislation does not
establish a precedent via report tanguage accompanying H.R. 568, While we
appreciate those efforts, and feel that the report language clarifies the

intent, the livestock industry would prefer no legislated moratorium.

Secondly, we are concerned about the issue of federal reserved water rights.
Neithr.- the House-passed bill nor the Senate bi11 address this issue,
However, this is the first withdrawal of public domain lands, and with it
comes an implied federal reserved water right, We believe that Congress has
a responsibility to define what that right is, rather than leaving it up to
the futu~e courts to interpret or misinterpret, with no limitation, There
is a grezt deal of uncertainty as a result of the Sierra Club v. Block

decision in Colorado over this issue. We believe Congress should spell out
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its intent, and require that the federal government assert any water rights

through the state water rights system.

We appreciate this opportunity to testify, and would be happy to answer any

questions.
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Senator BumpERs. Thank you very much, Mr. Eller.

Are you more concerned about a precedent here than you are
this particular area?

Mr. ELLER. Yes, sir.

Senator BumpERrs. We only have one farmer in this entire area
who has a grazing right, and his lease was with Tenneco, and it
expires this year.

Mr. Erier. The issue is not grazing this area with that tenant
because it was a private lease prior to now. All of a sudden, howev-
er, the Bureau of Land Management who manages the grazing
land of the west are taking this land over. The legislation says we
will have no more grazing in this area which has been used for
ranching and grazing purposes. The reasoning does not come for-
ward to ban it in any of the reports, any of the House language,
any of the House report, or any of the environmental statements
that were submitted to justify this public-private land trade.

Senator BuMPERS. What is your position on the water now? The
Arizona Cattlemen’s Association, which is one of your subsidiaries,
apparently has no objection to this bill.

Mr. ELLer. They have withdrawn their objection to the legisla-
tion. However——

Senator BumpERS. Why do you not defer to them?

Mr. ErLer. However, they are concerned about Federa! Reserve
water rights but agreed with John Kyl that probably in this case
there probably could be no problem, or there may not be a prob-
lem, or in this particular case maybe we can get by. I, representing
230,000 cattlemen and 27,000 public land users, are worried that if
as we take and set aside a piece of land for the Federal Govern-
ment we do not address the water rights issue, we definitely have
left it up to the courts to interpret what Congress means if Con-
gress will not say what we mean.

Senator BumpErs. Well, 1 would not mind addressing that in the
legislation, and perhaps we should, but I think you would agree,
would you not, Mr. Eller, that there is no point—here is what we
consider to be a really precious natural resource, about the only pe-
rennially freeflowing stream in the whole southwestern part of the
United States that flows year around, and there is no point in
having this legislation unless we are going to protect that particu-
lar quality, and that is the free flow of the water year around.
Would you agree with that? ‘
~ Mr. ELLER. The issue is not to protect that area and to have it do
what it was designed to do in the trade, to—as 1 looked at the plat
last year as we worked with Mr. Colby on the House side, the San
Pedro area is a diverse area within itself, and you have the south
end that is a lot different from the north end. You have some pres-
sures on some of it. Other areas it is wide open, desolate ranch
area. And I think it lends itself to multiple use management, mul-
tiple uses of the public, multiple uses for water, riparian and every-
thing else that BLM does. It is not just one stream that looks alike
up and down that stream. It is a widely varied area of the west
within the boundaries of the San Pedro itself.

Senator BUMPERS. Well, I certainly have no objection to grazing
rights. I do not know that there ought to be a 5-year-moratorium —
as you know, BLM has objected to a 15-year moratorium on graz-
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ing. And I do not know whether they are right or wrong about
that. And I would like to get some authority.

Mr. ELLER. ] think we would be happy to let a local grazing advi-
sory board and the BLM with ranchers and users and environmen-
talists decide that in the future. I do not think we must, Mr. Chair-
man, not have grazing on some of that area as again I look at the
plats and look at the pictures. There are some of the San Pedro
area that were I managing it as a private rancher I would remove
grazing. There are other areas of the San Pedro that grazing has
not hurt it apparently a bit, or at least I have not been shown pic-
tures or seen environmental statements where it has hurt the ri-
parian or the grass management or the land management. In those
areas that can be managed differently than those areas that vehic-
ular traffic has apparently damaged and people pressure has dam-
aged as well as livestock. We have had a lot of damage to some of
the area from more than livestock. And that needs to be managed
differently than, let’s say, the north end that seems to be very pris-
tine and desolate.

Senator BuMpERs. I think your point is well taken. Perhaps we
ought to have some kind of committee formed to advise the Con-
gress as to what, if any, damage would occur for grazing and
where, and what part of it is suitable for grazing, and I have no
objection to grazing if it can be sustained under a multiple use pur-
pose.

Mr. ELLEr. That would be our position also, Mr. Chairman, be-
cause as you know, the western rancher’s livelihood depends on
well managing the public lands that give him that livelihood.

Ms. McDoNALD. Mr. Chairman.

Senator BuMpERs. Yes.

Ms. McDonavp. If I may add something, I believe the legislation
does create an advisory council which would guide the agency in
the land use planning process.

Senator Bumpers. Well, the bill does provide, of course, that
BLM will come up with a plan.

Ms. McDonNALD. Exactly.

Senator BumpEers. And I must say in all fairness that, you know,
I have the utmost respect for Bob Burford, and he and I get along a
lot better than I do with most agencies in this administration, and
I think Bob would be deferential to this committee in the forma-
tion of that group to devise that plan.

Ms. McDoNALD. If during the formulation of that plan with the
advice of the advisory council they determined that grazing was
not an appropriate use we would have no objection to that.

Senator BumpERs. Nor would L.

Ms. McDonaALD. We would like to protect the integrity of that
planning process rather than seeing it usurped by Congressional
action.

Senator BumpERs. But as one—I think it was somebody from the
Sierra Club pointed out, there are two other rivers out there that
have just been lost, the Pecos and—what was the other one—that
harvesting of timber, cottonwoods along the bank and so on for fuel
use have really ruined those rivers. Tiey have lost 80, 90 percent
of their water flow, and so on, so that is the reason for this leiisla-
tion. We are trying to make sure that that does not happen here.
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Mr. ELLEr. We do not object to that attempt.

Senator BUMPERS. Sure.

Ms. McDonALD. The BLM, as I understand it, has a new riparian
policy that they have recently adopted. I believe the director pub-
lished that in January. I believe that they are very attuned to the
fact that riparian areas need to be protected, they need to be prop-
erly managed, but they believe and we believe that you can do that
with proper livestock grazing. It is not necessary to exclude grazing
in order to restore and maintain riparian areas in all circum-
stances. In some instances it may be, but we would hate to see that
precedent established, that the only way, as Senator McCain said, I
believe, he said this area has been overgrazed early in the century,
and the only way to restore it is via a moratorium, and we would
have to disagree that the only way to restore a riparian area would
be a Congressionally designated 15-year moratorium.

Riparian areas are pretty hardy. They come back. They are not

like—they are not out in the middle of the desert. They have

water. So there are other ways to do it besides banning livestock,
we believe.

Senator BumpErs. Thank you both very much for being with us
this morning.

The committee will adjourn.

[Whereupon, at 11:23 a.m., the hearing was adjourned.]
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Wasningtox, DC 208 10-8180

april 27, 1987

Mr. Robert F. Burford

Director

Bureau of Land Management

United States pepartment of the Interior
washington, D.C. 20240

peaxr Mr. Burford:

Thank you for your testimony today on s. 252 and H.R. 568,
bills to establish 2 San Pedro Riparian Legislation. 1 have
enclosed several gquestions to be answered in writing for
inclusion in the hearing record. Please submit your responses to
these questions to us by Monday, May 11, 1987.

Sincerely,

Dale Bumpers

Chairman

Subcommittee on public Lands,
National Parks and Forests

pB/dmn

(89

USSPRNCA00196



90

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS FOR BOB BURFORD, DIRECTOR, BLM
FROM SENATOR MALCOLM WALLOP

ON 8. 252 AND H.R, 568

pPlease provide a listing of holders of water rights in the
proposed San Pedro National Conservation Area, including
south of the national consarvation area to the Hexican
border. Please provide the amount of water, date of the
right, and purpose for which obtained.

Do you have a duty under the Clean Water Act to protect
riparian areas if you designate areas as such by regulation

_ or by Congressional designation?
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QUESTIONS TO ROBERT BURFORD

SAN PEDRO RIPARIAN CONSERVATION AREA

1. Last year in testimony before this Subcommittee on San
pedro legislation, the BLM stated that "We strongly support™ the
legislation wif amended as suggested.” The testimony ‘went on to
mention objections with language on mining, reporting provisions
and the 15 year moratorium on grazing permits. You gaid at that
time that if a moratorium is imposed that it should be no more

than 5 years.

Now it seems that you aI2 stating much broader objections.
You Say "wé can support this iegisiation only if it is amended to
better reflect the principles of multiple use management." You go
on to oppose the grazing moratorium with no mention of the

possibility of a 5-yer ban.

can you explain to the, Committee the reason for the departure

from last year's position on this legislation?

2. 1In your testimony you mention that éattle grazing is
currently allowed in the area. It is my understanding that the
g:azing p:esently underway is through a lease arrangement with
the previous owner of the land and that no Federal grazing
permits have peen issued for the San pedro. This owner
apparently knows that his right to graze cattle will conclude at

the end of this year with the expiration of his lease.

is this an accurate reflection of the current situation?
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3. Mr. Burford, the BLM went to great lengths to acquire

this parcel of land through exchange with Tenneco, Inc. IN REPLY REFERTO

. . 1750(140)

United States Department of the Interior

BUREA[()FLAND.“ANAGEMHNT
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

Why did you go to such trouble?

Given the special attributes of this land, do thisk

prohibiting some uses which would potentially harm its unique

resources would be unreasonable?

-
-
-
€

) Honorable Dale Bumpers

} Chairman, Subcommittee on Public Lands,
National Parks and Forests

Committee on Energy and Natural Resources

United States Senate

Washington, D.C, 20510

Dear umpers:

! This will respond to your April 27, 1987, letter in which you enclosed two
sets of questions relatiug to §. 252 and H.R. 568, bills to establish a San
Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area.

Two of the questions were from Senator Wallop. The first asks:

"pleagse provide a listing of holders of water rights in the proposed San
pedro National Conservation Area, including south of the national
conservation area to the Mexican border. Please provide the amount of
water, date of the right, and purpose for which obtained.”

In response to this question, according to the records there is just one
diversion of the San Pedro River between the jnternational boundary and the
porthern boundary of the proposed National Conservation Area. The diversion
dam is located in Section 4, Township 19 South, Range 21 East, approximately 7
miles south of St. David, Arizomna. The original date of first beneficial use
under this right is 1881 held by St. David Irrigation District. A canal
delivers water at a rate of 12.4 cfs or 500 acre-feet per month for most of
the year. The water ig used for irrigating approximately 280 acres of a total
1,000 acres in the irrigation district.

Another water right occurs within this stretch of the San Pedro for the
in-place or in-site use of river water for stock watering purposes only. This
right is held by the previous landowner for the main stream of the San Pedro
River starting at the river's southern point of entry onto the Bureau of Land
Manegement (BLM) land, northward throughout the course of the stream and
ending at the north boundary of Township 17 south, Range 20 East. This
end-point is about 9 miles north of the BIM land boundary. The permitted
amount of use is about 0.03 cubic feet per second and the priority date is
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1957. This water right does not represent & diversion of the river. The BLM
is working with the State and the previous landowner to gain separate
ownership with equal priority for this right.

The second question from Senator Wallop askst

"Do you have a duty under the Clean Water Act to protect riparian areas if
ycu designate areas as such by regulation or by Congressional designation?”

The Clean Water Act directs agencies to comply with the requirements of State
governments and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in eatablishing and
implementing best management practices for control of ponpoint sources of
pollution. Best management practices, as defined in the Clean Water Act and
regulated by the States, may include riparisn area improvement by protecting
streambanks and reducing sedimeat loading. The Bureau complies with these
requirements whether riparian areas are established by administrative action
or Congress.

The first question of the second set of questions states:

"Last year in testimony before this Subcommittee on San Pedro legislation,
the BLM stated that "We strongly support” the legislation "if amended a8
suggested.” The testimony went on to mention objections with language on
mining, reporting provisiome and the 15 year moratorius on grazing
permits. You said at that time that 41f a moratorium is imposed that it
should be no more than 5 years.

"Now it seems that you are stating much broader objections. You say "we
can support this legislation only 1f it is amended to better reflect the
principles of multiple use management.” You go on to oppose the grazing
moratorium with no mention of the possibility of a 5 year ban.

"Can you explain to the Committee the resson for the departure from last
year's position on this legislation?”

We do not feel our testimony this year reflects a departure from last year's
position as much as a change of emphasis. On reexamination of the bills we
felt it important to stress that management decisions should be made at the
local level by the professional land managers who are experts in their
disciplines and in the multiple use management of natural resources. We did
not think it appropriate to limit or hamper their exercise of discretion in
on-the-ground management by removing any possibility of 2 land use which may
be an advantageous uge of the land =~ even for S years. The comment that was
made about a moratorium of not more than 5 years was intended as an
alternative if Congress felt s moxatorium was esmential. It was intended to
cover a period no longer than the period of time that might be needed for land
use planning and implementing 8 management plan. We do not believe that any
legislated moratorium -~ even for 5 years - is appropriate. As a matter of
fact, the lands in the San Pedro Conservation Area are closed now, and no
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grazing will be allowed when the current leases expire unless and until it is
determined, &8 & reault of the land use planning process, that grazing would
be appropriate in the area.

The second of this set of questions gtates:

"In your testimony you mention that cattle grazing is currently allowed in
the area. It iz mYy upderstanding that the grazing presently undergay is
through a lease arrangement with the previous owner of the land and that
no Pederal grazing permits have been issued for the San Pedro. This owner
apparently knove that his right to graze cattle will conclude at the end

of this year with the explration of his lease.

"Is this an accurate reflection of the current situation?”
The answer to this question is yes.
The third question states:

"Mr. Burford, the BLM went to great lengths to acquire this parcel of land
through exchange with Tenneco, Inc.

"Why did you go to such trouble?

2o
“Given the special attributes of this land, do'think prohibiting some uses
which would potentially harm its unlque resources would be unreasonable?

In our management of the 1and in the San Pedro Conservation Area under
principles of multiple use we will not allow any use which would potentielly
hars the unique resources of the area. I have a tremendous amount of
confidence in the ability of our managers to make wise land use decisiouns.
public participation, along with guidance from the San Pedro Riparian National
Conservation Area Advisory Committee, will further assure that prudent
management decisions will be reached and imp;emented to meet the intended
management objectives for this area. A legislative prohibition of potential
uses before it has been fully determined that any uses would be harmful is not
good land management and we object to that.

1 trust you find this information helpful. Thank you for the opportunity to

respond to your questions.
Sincerely, W

Director
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ApPENDIX 11
Additional Material Submitted for the Record

T roouen. et Cotmen
FRED . BAXER.
LARRY D_ADAMS, Cay
FRARCES W. WTANCR. Tuoso
[ . Prgan
Director
BUO BRISTOW

At Do S (,(f . ARIZONA GAME & FISH DEPARTMENT
bt i . 2222 Wit Prarnmy Foad  Posnia. Aigpua 85023 9423000

April 28, 1987

The Honorable Dale Bumpers, Chairman
Public Lands Reserved Water Rights
and Resource Conservation Committee
United States Senate

Washington D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Bumpers:

As you are aware H.R. 568 proposes to establish the San
Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area in Cochise Co,
Arizona. This legislation will be considered on April 30th in
the public lands sub-committee which you chair. The enactment of
this bill will have a significant long term benefit for the
protection and use of nearly 50,000 acres of unique habitat as
well as other resources within the boundary of this proposed
National Conservation Area.

on April 25, 1987, in public session, the Arizona Game and
Fish Commission unanimously adopted the following statement
regarding its position on the management of the area and
H.R. 5681

"The Arizona Game and Fish Commission supports the
management of the San Pedro River exchange lands by the Bureau of
Land Management and recognizes that the Bureau is the best
qualified agency to administer the archaelogical,
psleontological, scientific, cultural, aeducational and
recreational resource values present on these lands.”

“Further, the Commission requests favorable consideration
for the passage of H.R 568 which provides the mechanism to
address the future management of these lands recognizing the role
of hunting and trapping. Specific mention of this form of
consumptive use, regulated by the Commission in cooperation with
the Bureau of Land Management, belongs in the management plan of
this resource.”

The Commission encourages the passage of H.R. 568 and offers
the expertise of the Arizona Game and Fish Department regarding

An Bevel Coponunity Ageney

The Honorable Dale Bumpers -2-

any questions you may have concerning the wildlife values
associated with this very important natural resource.

Cordially,
pa s A0
Ineds SNANEY,

Fred S. Baker, Chairman

April 28, 1987

Arizona Game and Fish Commission

FSB/blc

CCs

The Honorable Dennis DeConcini
The Honorable John McCain
Members of the Public Land
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AWA
VMV  American wilderness Alliance

7600 East Arapahoe Road/Suite 114/Englewood, Colorado 80ON2/(303) 7N-038O
April 2, 1987

Senator Dale Bumpers, Chairman

Subcomuittee on Public Lands

Senate Energy & Natural Resources Committee
U. S. Senate

washington, D. C. 20510

Dear Senator Bumpers:

This is to express our support for H R 568, to designate the San
Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area in Arizona.

This measure was passed in the House on March 24 and is now before
the Senate.

H R 568 is designed to protect this outstanding riparian area and
the aquatic, wildlife, archeological, paleontological, scientific,
cultural, educational and recreational resources surrounding the San
Pedro River in Cochise County, Arizona.

T.e American Wilderness Alliance is a national non-profit
organization whose members and staff are working to conserve the
nation's decreasing public wildlands, wildlife habitat and free-
flowing rivers. We have members throughout the United State,
including in Arizona, and many of them are familiar with the San
Pedro River and surrounding area.

The proposed San Pedro Riparian National Conservation Area still
contains approximately 75% of its native flora, 20 species of
raptors' and more than 200 other bird species. The conservation area
is also rich in species of mammals and archeological treasures. It
is close to human populations centers and important to them for
recreational, scientific and educational purposes. It was acquired
by the Bureau of Land Management largely intact and fully deserves
the special protection and management that this measure would
provide. In the desert, it is rare to £ind such a river area still
largely in its original natural conditionm.

All Arizona House nembers unanimously supported the bill, and we
respectfully urge its prompt enactment in the Senate.

Please make this letter a part of the hearing record or other files
on this matter, as appropriate.

Singerely,

R-

Clifton R. Merritt
Executive Director

Working Togetter TO
Conserve Wid America

Bobd Bowman
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Arizona Cattle Growers’ Association

Publishers of Arizona Cattielog
.. Suita 110 + Phoenix. Arlzona 85034 + Telephone (602 2671129

The Honorahle Dale Bumpers
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Bumpers:

At the request of Senator DeConcini and Senator
MoCazin, the Arizona Cattle Growers' Association
would like to advise you of our position in regards
to HR 568 and 5.252, bills to establish a San Pedro
Riparian National Conservation Area,

As an association, we strongly support the concept
of conserving this desert riparian area and pro-
tecting and enhancing the riparian, wildlife,
archeological, paleontological, scientific, cult-
ural, educational and recreation resources within
it.

The Association has, however, opposed the statu-
torily imposed moratorium on livestock grazing con-
tained within the bill: first, believing that such
determinations rightly belong to the designated
management agency, and secondly, fearing that for
whatever reason the grazing ban was established in
this particular bill, it would be interpreted as
being intended to set precedent for future conser-
vation and wilderness type legislation.

These concerns were expressed in several discussions
with the members of our House delegation and in an
effort to mitigate the Association's concerns,
language was developed for HR 568 to stipulate that
the fifteen year moratorium was for the purpose of
studying the San pPedro Riparian Area only. The
accompanying committee report language also stressed
the fact that the ban on grazing was not intended to
serve as precedent in future legislative develop-
ments.

Our House delegation has endeavored to send a clear
message that the grazing ban is for the purpose of
studying this one riparian area exclusively, and

we appreciate their efforts in our behalf.
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The Honorable Dale Bumpers
April 28, 1987

Page ¢

We still have serious comcerns that Congress, even
in just this one instance, is practicing land man-
agement by way of legislatilon, rather than through
its land management agency.However, 1in the dis-
cussions with our delegation, we agreed that if, at
the very least, our delegation would clarify its
intent regarding the setiling of precedence on
grazing bans,we could live with the legislation.

This was done by the House, and we did,therefore,
withdraw our opposition.

we still see no need for s stetutory grazing ban.
but we would hope that st the very least, the Senate
will also take steps to see that such an sction does
not carry the message, inadvertantly or otherwise,
that grazing and riparian areas are fncompatible.
We hope that it is clearly expressed that the pro-
posed temporary moratorium is for the purpose of
studying this one riparian area exclusively.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter.

Sincerely,

{Zmle N

Pamela Neal
Executive Vice President

cc: Senator DeConcini
Senator McCain
Arizona Delegation - House of Representatives
National Cattlemen's Association
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The Arizona Nature Conservancy

30 North Tucson Blvd. / Tucson, AZ 85716 / (602) 327-4478

May S. 1987

Senator Dale Bumpers
Dirksen Building Room 229
washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator:

Please allow me the opportunity to comment on HR 568, a bill
heard recently in your sub-committee. On behalf of The

Ar izona chapter of The Nature Conservancy, & national,
non-profit conservation organization, I would like to
expresas atrong aupport for the creation of the San Pedro
River Conservation Area. Juat a short drive from our Tucaon
office, we have maintained a atrong interest in the
protection of this critical riparian syatem over the years.
The recent acquisition by the Bureau of Land Management and
the aforementioned legislation will ensure the long-term
protection of one of the most important riparian habitats
present in the Southwest today.

it is in regards to the protection of this critical area
that I would like to direct my comments. In our opinion,
one of the key provisions in the bill under consideration 1is
the 15 year moratorium on livestock grazing. While
livestock grazing is often maligned as a primary factor
responsible for many of the environmental problems we see
today, it is unfortunately correct that grazing as played a
major role in the degradation of riparian habitats in the
arid Southwest.

It is only logical that in arid environments, organisms are
prone to concentrate in areas with adequate water. In the
case of livestock this has resulted in the overutilization
of riparian habitats. Land managers have long recognized
this problem and over the last several years, these managers
have placed a major emphasis on riparian habitat management.

Unfortunately due to past abuses and the lack of knowledge

on the natural ecology of these riparian systems, many
management ideas have been difficult to evaluate and

National Office / 1800 North Kent Street / Arlington, Virginia 22209
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controversial. One of the major problem areas has been the '
pervasive nature of grazing in ripsrisn habitats in the The i
Southwest, Recause of this, benchmark areas to study the P&IUUV j
natural ecology of riparian habitats in the absence of ! (:OHSUWWHQY
livestock are unavailable. Until we can begin to develop a |

more refined understanding of the natural dynamics of these L e -

systems, efforis to develop adeguete livestock grazing
management systems remain experimental and their results
inconcliusive.

Given the ovarwhelming biological significance of this area,
1t seems best advised to defer ygrazing unti1l riparian
grazing management concepta have been better developed. The
intervenina 15 yeara will also allow the San Pedro River
Sonservation Ares to vrovide researchers and land managers

April 28, 1987

the undisturbed environment so badly needed to better The Honorable Dale Bumpers -

underatand the natural ecology of riparian communitics, Chairman, Subcommittee on Public Lanas
National Parks and Fgrests .

We urge you to retain the language deferring grazing for 15 229 Dirksen Senate office Building

years so ag to ensure the adeguate protection of the 3San washington, p.C. 20510

Pedro River Conservation Area. Thank you for the opportunity .

to provide comment on this important issue. Dear Mr. Chailrman,

holding hearings
The Nature Conservancy commends you for L :
on S§. 252 which would establish the san Pedro Riparian National
Conservation Area. We wish to submit the enc}osgd t:est:fun»:my(,i
and we respect fully request that you include it in the record.

Sincerely,

7 /’:?2;(34(//

Dan Camp%

The Nature Conservancy supports this important
Director

i ist the Committee

' conservation measure and stands ready to ass

{ in any way as it considers S. 252. Thank you for your tigg §2d
; attention, and do not hesitate to call me at (703) 841-53 i

: 1 can provide further information.

Sincerely.,

Carot e Gicslone

Carol Lee Baudler .
Assistant Director Government Relations

1800 North Kent Street * Adington. Virginia 22209 - (703) 841-5300
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Coe STATEMENT OF JOHN FLICKER
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIVENT, THE NATURE CONSERVANCY
FOR THE SENATE ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES
SUBCOMMITTEE OH PUBLIC LANDS, NATIUNAL PARKS AiD FURESTS

Thank you for the opportunity to submit the views of The iature
Conservancy on 3. 252, We wish to express our support for estabiishment
of the San Pedro Riparian Conservation Area, and for the protections
offered in 5. 252. We commend Senators DeConcini and icCain for their
initiative in introducing this legislation and thank Cnafrman dumpers for
holding hearings on this issue.

The Nature Conservancy is a national non-profit land conservation
organization dedicated to the preservation of biological diversity.
Since our founding in 1954, we have helped to preserve wore than two and
a half million acres of natural lands and waters. More importantly,
these acres were carefully identified as the wost significant pieces of
our natural diversity through a process we call Natural Heritage Programs.

State Natural Heritage Inventories are biological and ecological
surveys carried out at the state jevel, primarily in order to plan for
the efficient conservation of biological diversity. Each of these
programs is carried out by a professional staff of biologists,
ecologists, and information managers who continuously collect and refine
data on the existence, characteristics, nuabers, condition, status,
Jocation, and distribution of plant and animal species, habitats,
ecological communities, and certain other natural features. They also
manage information on existing public and private preserves and managed
areas, high priority sites proposed for new preserves, pertinent land
ownership information, and great numbers of published and unpublished
information sources, including individual scientists and other experts.

The first of these programs was launched in the South Carolina
Wildlife and Marine Resources Department in 1974, Today, Natural
reritage Inventories have been established in 40 states ewploying 238
individuals on a full-time basis.

The Arizona datural Heritage Program has identified several critical
sites that are now included within the boundaries of the proposed San
Pedro Riparian Conservation Area. The inclusfon of these sites and the

1400 North Kent Street » Arlington, Virginia 22209 ¢ (703) 841-5300
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managenent restrictions provided in the Tegistation will ensure adequate
protection of sensitive elements.

The following sites are noteworthy: (G-1 and G-Z are indicative of
globally endangered eleqents)

1. Saint David cienega. One of the only two sites on public lands which
supports warm-teaperature marsnland, a G2 plant comunity. This site is

by far tne wost exemp lary.

2. Mesauite Bosque. duch of tne higher floodplain terraces in the
northern portion of the Conservation ar€a support extensive Mesauite
bosque, another GZ plant comaunity. This is the only public land site of
any significant acreage. This site is also the only known site in which
the understory vegetation is dowinated by natural vegetation rather than
exotic annual grasses and herbs.

3. Cottonwood-dillow Riparian Forest. The most extensive occurrence of
this GZ comnunity in tne United States. Historically widespread, this
community has diminished greatly since early settlement times. The area
provides nesting habitat for Gray hawk and Yellow-billed Cuckoo, two rare
birds in the state. .

4. Gila River riverine. Half of all the type localities for Arizona
native fish were from the section river within the Conservation Area.
While all tnese species are now extirpated from the river and wnuch of
their former range, the potential with respect to re-intro@uction efforts
is certainly exciting. several of these species are officially listed
endangered and are TNC G1 eleients.

I want to edphasize that these are the very pest natural area sites
pased on the most current scientific information available to the Arizona
Hatural Heritage Program. It does not imply that otner {mportant sites
could not be found if further inventory or research work were done in the
area.
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FAIRBANKS/SAN PEDRO RIVER
AREA OF CRITICAL ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERN
RESEARCH NATURAL AREA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: T 195 R21€ $4,5,3,9,16,17

SITE DESCRIPTION: A deeply incised perennial stream whose lower
fioodpiain terraces support a gailery riparian forest association
dominated by Fremont cottonwood (Populus fremontii) and Goodding willow
(Salix gooddingii). High terraces above the Tevel of recent entrenchment
border the gallery forest and support an extensive mesquite woodiand
dominated by velvet mesquite (Prosopis velutina) and alkali sacaton
{Sporobolus airoides). Several oird species of limited occurrence in the
state breed in these riparian habitats and include Yellow-billed cuckoo
{Coccyzus americanus), a Category 2 USFWS Candidate species, Gray hawk
{Butec nitidus), Mississippi kite (Ictinia mississipiensis) and northern
beardiess tyrannuiet {Camptostoma imberbe].

TDENTIFICATION CRITERIA (CFR 43 1610.7-2)
A, RELEVANCE: A significant wildlife resource and natural system.

3. IMPORTANCE: 8otn Fremont cottonwood - Goodding willow and velvet
mesquite - alkali sacaton riparian forest and woodland associations are
extremely rare in the Southwest, The San Pedro River riparian corridor
represents the most extensive, well-developed occurence of these two rare
comnunity types on public lands. The site described here includes one of
the best developed stands of continuous deciduous oroadleaf gallery
forest and mesquite woodland on tne upper river system. The occurrence
of these two types together provide an excellent illustrative example of
low elevation riparian forest systems which are associated with the
larger, perennial desert river systems in the Southwest., Past and
present geomorphological changes in this riverine/palustrine ecosystem
provide an exellent opportunity to study riparian plant community
dynamics in relation to fluvial dynamics. Both the Fremont
cottonwood-Goodding willow and velvet wmesquite - alkali sacaton
associations are not represented in the Southwestern Research Natural
Area program. A recent USFS Progress Report on the Southwestern Research
Natural Area program makes specific reference to the urgent need to
represent broad-leafed cottonwood community types.
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ST. DAVID CIENEGA
AREA OF CRITICAL ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERN -
RESEARCH NATURAL AREA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Cochise County, Arizona; T13S R21E S29

SITE DESCRIPTION: An extensive clenega maintained by by an artesian
spring adjacent to an inactive travertime mound located at the nortnwest
end of the cienega. The cienega vegetation which covers an expanse of
shallow water generally less tnan 20 cm deep is dominated by a monotypic
stand of bulrush (Scirpus sp.) and occasional patcnes of cattail (Typna
dominquensis). At tne outer edges of the bulrusn stand on less saturated
so0i1Ts, yerba manza (Anemopsis californica) and sedges (Carex spp.)
predominate. On the driest sites Alkali sacaton (SporoboTus afroides)
and saltgrass (Distichlis s jcata) are common., Two aquatic pian s1occur
there which are of Timited distribution in the state. Tnese are false
dandelion (Pyrrhopappus rotnrockii) and Aster aucifiorus, An old
nistorical record exgsfs From "5t. David™ for AB0OpS1s recurva, .&
USFWS Category 2 species. An aquatic herb with™a good probabiTity of
occurrence in the cienega, this record has not been recently

re-verified. A mesquite (Prosopis velutina) woodland surrounds the area
to the north and west,

In the vicinity of tnhe spring, a small pond is maintained by a low dike.
This spring-feﬁ pond may serve as an excellent introduction site for two

federally listed endangered fish, Desert pupfish (Cyprinodon macularius)
and Gila topminnow (Poeciliopsis occidentalis), Several large bulTTrogs
(Rana catesbiana) were noted 1n the pond waich could compromise the
suitability of tne site for endangered native fish introductions.

IDENTIFICATION CRITERIA: (43 CFR 1510.7-2)

A. RELEVANCE - Tne cienega community represents a significant natural
system. The isolated perennial spring and adjacent small pond may have
excellent potential for intreduction of native endangered fish.

8. IMPORTANCE - Cienegas of tne type described here are extremely rare in
the Soutnwest. While once more extensive tnese aquatic communities nave
diminisned substantially in Arizona duriny tne past century as a rgsult
of excessive livestock grazing, streambed modifications and ciimatic
change. This site is one of only two known sites in puolic ownership.
{{vestock impacts have not been severe and tne cienega community has

retained much of it's natural character.
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TUCSON AUDUBON SOCIETY

34 N. TUCSON BLVD. TUCSON, AZ 867168
' {802) 323-9673

7 May 1987

Honorsble Dale Bumpers, Chairman
Public Lands Subcommittee

United States Seneate

229 Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510-0401

Dear Senator Bumpers:

On behalf of Tucson (Arizona) Auvdubon Society, I ask your
support of H.R. 568 establishing the San Pedro Riparian
National Conservation Area in Cochise County, Arizona.

The San Pedro River represents one of the best examples of
riverine habitat remaining in the gouthwestern United
States. In additionm, it hes outstanding archaeological
values. In order to protect these exceptional features, 1
strongly urge your help to pass the bill unchanged from what
was approved by the House of Representatives.

Thank you for considering these comments.

Sincerely yours,

i~
William G. Roe
President

cc: Senator Dennis DeConcini
Senator John McCain

conservation education recreation
O

USSPRNCAO00206



	USSPRNCA00150
	USSPRNCA00151
	USSPRNCA00152
	USSPRNCA00153
	USSPRNCA00154
	USSPRNCA00155
	USSPRNCA00156
	USSPRNCA00157
	USSPRNCA00158
	USSPRNCA00159
	USSPRNCA00160
	USSPRNCA00161
	USSPRNCA00162
	USSPRNCA00163
	USSPRNCA00164
	USSPRNCA00165
	USSPRNCA00166
	USSPRNCA00167
	USSPRNCA00168
	USSPRNCA00169
	USSPRNCA00170
	USSPRNCA00171
	USSPRNCA00172
	USSPRNCA00173
	USSPRNCA00174
	USSPRNCA00175
	USSPRNCA00176
	USSPRNCA00177
	USSPRNCA00178
	USSPRNCA00179
	USSPRNCA00180
	USSPRNCA00181
	USSPRNCA00182
	USSPRNCA00183
	USSPRNCA00184
	USSPRNCA00185
	USSPRNCA00186
	USSPRNCA00187
	USSPRNCA00188
	USSPRNCA00189
	USSPRNCA00190
	USSPRNCA00191
	USSPRNCA00192
	USSPRNCA00193
	USSPRNCA00194
	USSPRNCA00195
	USSPRNCA00196
	USSPRNCA00197
	USSPRNCA00198
	USSPRNCA00199
	USSPRNCA00200
	USSPRNCA00201
	USSPRNCA00202
	USSPRNCA00203
	USSPRNCA00204
	USSPRNCA00205
	USSPRNCA00206


